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June 30, 2009

The Honourable Aileen Carroll
Minister of Culture
900 Bay Street, 5th Floor, Mowat Block
Toronto ON M7A 1L2

Dear Minister:

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Ontario Trillium Foundation (OTF), I am pleased to 
submit our Annual Report for the fiscal year 2008-2009.

In this report you will find a brief summary that highlights the goals achieved by the Foundation. 
Also included is a list of grants made and our audited financial statements. This year we have 
chosen to highlight a number of culturally diverse grants representing the four sectors we fund; 
arts and culture, human and social services, sports and recreation and the environment. We have 
also chosen to feature two Future Fund grants. 

The Foundation is committed to building healthy and vibrant communities across Ontario through 
community-based initiatives that strengthen the capacity of the voluntary sector. We are grateful 
for the increase in government funding as it has allowed us to have an even greater impact in 
communities across the province.

Our volunteer Board of Directors and Grant Review Teams, supported by a dedicated and 
knowledgeable professional staff, continue to provide outstanding leadership. We share a 
collective pride in the Foundation’s successes, as described in this report.

We value the effective working relationship OTF has with your ministry, and we look forward to 
continuing our important work together.

Sincerly,

Helen Burstyn 
Chair of the Board
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Message From The Chair 
Helen Burstyn

It is an extraordinary honour to serve as Chair of the Ontario Trillium 
Foundation (OTF). My admiration for the Foundation has grown ever greater 
since I first joined its Board of Directors five years ago. 

OTF grants and volunteers are having an incredible impact everywhere in 
the province. For everyone associated with OTF, the work of the not-for-profit 
organizations we support inspires us in our mission of building strong 
and vibrant communities across Ontario. This year, once again, there were 
countless examples of innovation, creativity and resilience as not-for-profits 
– large and small, established and emerging, rural and urban -- met the many 
challenges facing them during tough economic times.

The OTF Future Fund program is a great example of some of the groundbreaking grants we made 
this year. Our capacity-building work in the environment sector is gaining momentum through 
a second Future Fund investment of $2 million. Encouraged by the initial outcomes of the 2007 
Future Fund environment grant recipients, OTF anticipates continued growth in this important 
and underfunded sector. To date OTF has invested $4 million to promote collaboration and build 
leadership in the environment sector through this fund.

The Future Fund also granted $2 million to organizations working together to break down barriers 
to employment and formation of social enterprises. In the face of a failing economy, the Fund’s 
strategic focus is both relevant and timely as it supports projects that are creating innovative 
economic opportunities for Ontarians.

We are pleased to enjoy the continued confidence of the Ontario Government, which once again 
invested in the Foundation with a second annual budget increase in spring 2008. The boost in our 
funding from $105 million to $110 million will help OTF make an even greater impact in Ontario 
communities. 

In 2008-2009, the Foundation invested $104,596,300, in 1,484 grants to charitable and not-for-profit 
organizations in our four funding sectors across the province: We have:

Contributed more than $43.4 million to grants in the human and social services sector;•	

Supported the sports and recreation sector with more than $23.3 million in grants;•	

Invigorated the arts and culture sector with more than $24.6 million in funding; and•	

Dedicated more than $15 million to the not-for-profit environment sector.•	

OTF appreciates that the people of Ontario are diverse and dynamic, and that community needs 
differ across the province. Our approach is inclusive and our support for innovation is genuine. We 
continue to expand our knowledge of ethnic and marginalized communities in Ontario in many 
ways. Our ethnic media roundtables are already helping us to better understand the needs of 
cultural groups across the province. 

I am grateful to the volunteer Board of Directors and Grant Review Team members who serve 
alongside me. Their support and dedication is vital to the Foundation’s success, and I am honoured 
to be in such good company.
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I would like to also recognize the Honourable Aileen Carroll, Minister of Culture, for her 
unwavering support of OTF and the communities we serve throughout Ontario. She demonstrates 
her support to the Foundation time and again when she attends the many events recognizing our 
grantees and community partners.

The OTF staff, led by CEO L. Robin Cardozo, has some of the most talented and dedicated 
professionals I have had the pleasure of working with. I salute their commitment and contribution 
to the Foundation’s work, and their exemplary sense of public service.

Not-for-profits are the unseen hand that keeps Ontario afloat, in good times and bad. As the 
demand for services increases and the sector faces new pressures, I have no doubt that the 
Ontario Trillium Foundation is well-positioned to play a leading role in building an even stronger 
Ontario. 

Helen Burstyn 
Chair of the Board
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Message From The Chief Executive Officer 
L. Robin Cardozo

We live in extraordinary times in a world that requires us to constantly learn 
and adapt. From changes in technology and the way we communicate to a 
stumbling economy, challenges and opportunities present themselves daily, 
and through it all there is no question that Ontario’s not-for-profit (NFP) 
sector plays a vital role in keeping our communities healthy and vibrant. 

The Ontario Trillium Foundation (OTF) remains steadfast in its mission to 
strengthen the voluntary sector through investments in community-based 
initiatives. This year we played an active leadership role within the NFP 
sector, providing knowledge and opportunities for groups to share with one 
another.

Our commitment to knowledge sharing is evident in the Foundation’s continuous research 
work. Both timely and relevant, OTF research is helping position the Foundation as a knowledge 
leader. We were pleased to present the Your Community in Profile reports which feature recent 
demographic data from Statistics Canada. The unique data is helping NFP organizations, 
municipalities and governments to anticipate change, address future needs and manage 
solutions within Ontario communities and the province overall. The reports also help to inform 
the Foundation’s grantmaking to ensure community needs continue to be addressed.

In response to recent economic concerns, OTF had in-depth conversations with more than 100 
NFP organizations large and small representing all NFP sectors we serve. Respondents in this 
study, aptly called Challenges and Opportunities in the Economic Crisis, asked OTF to take on a 
greater role in sharing best practices and in convening groups within the sector. We successfully 
hosted our first webinar and online discussion forum to highlight key findings from the study. 

Continuing our work to streamline the Foundation’s granting and administrative processes, we 
were excited to pilot the new online application process in two of our funding regions this year. 
Applicants in Thames Valley and Champlain were pleased with the user friendly online platform, 
which featured fewer application questions. The positive feedback was extremely encouraging. 
We are well on track to providing online grant application and review services to all of Ontario by 
2010. 

As always, I am extremely grateful to our volunteer Board of Directors and Grant Review Team 
members whose commitment and passion to serving their communities has been instrumental 
to the Foundation’s continued success. I would also like to express my thanks to OTF Chair Helen 
Burstyn, whose dedication and energy inspires us all.

The staff at OTF is a talented and engaged group of professionals who continue to raise the 
bar of excellence. I am honoured to lead them and appreciate their unwavering support in the 
Foundation’s work.

This year was a very special year for 36 members of staff who achieved more than 10 years 
of service with OTF. I am proud of this impressive accomplishment and the collaborative, 
supportive work environment that has played a part in this success.  We were pleased to be able 
to celebrate this important milestone in early 2009. 
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As we forge ahead, we know the journey will not be a smooth one. The strength of the not-for-
profit sector will be tested as organizations adapt and respond to a changing economic climate. 
OTF has an important role to play at this time. We will continue to rally the sector and provide 
the knowledge and resources necessary to strengthen Ontario’s communities. 

L. Robin Cardozo 
Chief Executive Officer
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The Ontario Trillium Foundation Business Plan for the year covered three major performance 
goals, each with supporting objectives. The following summarizes the organization’s 
achievements relative to those goals and objectives.  

GOAL 1:  Make investments to build healthy and vibrant communities and 
strengthen the capacity of the voluntary sector

OBjECTIVE 1: Make grants to achieve priorities

Achievements:

Allocated 100 per cent of the year’s granting budget, by granting program and by catchment area,  •
subject to modest variations.

Achieved granting targets within sector allocation ranges by granting 24 per cent of funds in the  •
arts and culture sector, 13 per cent in the environment sector, 41 per cent in the human and social 
services sector and 22 per cent in the sports and recreation sector.  

Significantly increased OTF granting in the environment sector: over the past three years granting  •
in this sector has grown from $7.6 million (2005/06) to $13.2 million (2008/09).

Achieved granting targets in the four granting priority areas. Granting under the “enhanced  •
employment and economic potential” priority doubled over the previous year, to $14.0 million. 

OBjECTIVE 2: Enhance the impact of OTF grants

Achievements:

Published the results of Small Towns: Big Impacts, a  •
research study to assess the community-wide impact 
of OTF grants.

Continued work on a multi-year project to determine  •
measures of healthy and vibrant communities, 
including stakeholder and community consultation. 
Initial results of this comprehensive research will 
be presented and discussed at the OTF Professional 
Development Conference in November 2009.

Worked to enhance the long-term impact of Ontario’s  •
not-for-profit sector through grants for organizational 
capacity building, and began work on a comprehensive 
review of the impact of this funding.

Entered into a partnership with the Ministry of  •
Citizenship and Immigration, to improve the capacity of Ontario’s voluntary organizations, with 
particular emphasis on small and mid-sized groups outside urban centres.

ACCOUNTABILITY, IMPACT AND ORGANIZATIONAL EFFECTIVENESS 
Ontario Trillium Foundation Review of 2008-2009 Achievements

The Kapuskasing Nordic Ski Club, the Remi 
Ski Hill in Moonbeam and the ski-hill lodge in 
Kapuskasing have all helped revitalize the local 
economy in their community
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For every $10.00 granted over the past three years, leveraged an additional $17.50 in volunteer time,  •
in-kind contributions and direct funding from other sources.

OBjECTIVE 3: Strengthen the Foundation’s role as a leader and convenor

Achievements:

 Continued implementation of the Foundation’s knowledge management strategy, the cornerstones  •
of which are new plans for research, knowledge sharing, convening and communications that will 
extend the Foundation’s role in providing support to the not-for-profit sector beyond its granting 
dollars.

As part of a new convening plan, significantly increased  •
activity under this objective, bringing grantees, other 
stakeholders and Foundation staff and volunteers together 
in areas identified as priorities for OTF, including Aboriginal 
groups, northern and rural communities and organizations 
in the environment sector.  

Produced Your Community in Profile – a series of 17  •
customized statistical reports on economic, social and 
demographic trends in Ontario, based on data drawn from 
the 2006 Census results – in order to help not-for-profits 
and their funders address emerging and future community 
needs.

Published Challenges and Opportunities for Ontario’s   •
Not-for-Profit Sector during Tough Economic Times.  This report is the result of interviews with 
more than 100 Ontario not-for-profit organizations in what is the first phase of a multi-phase project 
to work with the sector and with other funders to better understand and react to the impact of the 
recession.

OBjECTIVE 4: Enhance the equity and accessibility of OTF funding

Achievements:

Carried out targeted outreach to encourage grant applications from under-serviced and under- •
privileged populations, including Aboriginal, Francophone, ethnocultural and racial minority, 
northern, and rural groups, and groups in urban priority neighbourhoods. 

Significantly increased granting to First Nations, Métis and Aboriginal communities: over three years,  •
funding to these communities has grown from $3.0 million in 2005/06 to $8.2 million in 2008/09 (not 
including grants that serve multiple communities).

Adjusted the Community program funding formula to reflect the most recent Census data. •

Continued to focus on increased capital grant funding in lower budget catchment areas.  •
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GOAL 2:  Implement the results of the Board’s 2005-2007 strategic review 
and initiate a review of the Foundation’s Strategic Positioning

Achievements:

Completed implementation of strategic review decisions, including $2 million in additional  •
funding for the Future Fund and funds for enhanced capital granting.  

Substantially completed a review of the Foundation’s Strategic Positioning, including  •
recommendations around knowledge sharing convening, and other services that add value 
beyond grantmaking. 

GOAL 3:  Enhance organizational effectiveness

 
Achievements:

To help ensure a continuing high level of effectiveness in OTF’s governance, business, 
communications and granting practices, in 2008/09 the Foundation: 

Carried out its annual grantee compliance audit – which complements the Foundation’s  •
monitoring of every grant – as well as an audit of declined grant files, and implemented 
recommendations from previous internal audit reports. 

Completed a risk-based assessment of the Foundation and its granting practices (as required  •
under the government’s Transfer Payment Accountability Directive).

Maintained a high ranking as a cost-effective foundation. •

Continued work on the multi-year Business Process Transformation project to enhance OTF’s  •
grantmaking capacity by increasing the efficiency of its granting processes and administrative 
systems, through electronic service delivery and related functions.

Maintained and enhanced the Foundation’s pro-active communications strategy.  Specific  •
achievements included the facilitation of more than 770 grantee recognition events, more 
than $1.7 million value in earned media coverage, and an award for the OTF Small Towns: Big 
Impact report from the Council on Foundations.

Refined OTF’s pandemic response plan and began internal testing and training. •
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Our Vision, Mission and Values

The Ontario Trillium Foundation (OTF), one of 
Canada’s leading grantmaking foundations, is an 
agency of the Government of Ontario.

Our vision 
The Ontario Trillium Foundation is a catalyst that 
enables Ontarians to work together to enhance 
the quality of life in their communities. We believe 
that communities across Ontario are rich in talent, 
creativity and drive, and our grants stimulate 
communities to build on these assets.  

Our mission 
Building healthy and vibrant communities 
throughout Ontario by strengthening the capacity 
of the voluntary sector, through investments in 
community-based initiatives. 

Our core values and operating principles 
The following core values and operating principles guide the Ontario Trillium Foundation 
and shape its organizational culture. Our volunteers and staff are dedicated to reflecting 
these values in their actions and relationships.

Inclusiveness and innovation 
Our policies and programs acknowledge 
that the people of Ontario are diverse and 
dynamic and that community needs differ 
across the province.  We support creative 
initiatives that respond to the real needs of 
Ontario’s varied and evolving communities.  

Integrity and respect 
Our grant decision-making processes, 
business practices and communications 
strategies are governed by the principles 
of honesty, integrity and fairness. We treat 
all stakeholders respectfully, including 
volunteers, staff, grant applicants, and 
members of the public.

Efficiency and impact 
We are determined to ensure that 
public funds are well invested and that 
our grantmaking and grant-monitoring 
processes are cost efficient. We consistently 
measure and evaluate results based on grant 
outcomes.

Accountability and transparency  
We appreciate the trust placed in us by the 
Government of Ontario, and safeguard the 
public funds we receive through rigorous 
accountability controls. Our communications 
programs and operational processes ensure 
that our guidelines and grant  decisions are 
accessible and transparent to the public. 

Excellence 
Because we believe passionately that our 
work enhances the quality of life for people 
across Ontario, we aim to achieve the  
highest professional standards of excellence.   

Volunteer and staff leadership 
Our leadership depends on skilled staff 
working in productive partnership with 
knowledgeable volunteers who understand 
the  needs of local communities in their 
region. Our staff and volunteer human 
resources practices foster this creative 
synergy. 
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Our Granting Priorities
The Foundation will support the building of healthy and vibrant communities through community-based 
initiatives that strengthen the capacity of organizations in the arts and culture, environment, human and 
social services and sports and recreation sectors.

In particular, the Foundation will place priority on supporting organizations that work in the following 
areas to help Ontarians achieve their potential.

Enhanced success for students and learners
A healthy and vibrant community depends on the skills and knowledge of its members.

Whether knowledge and skills are developed in the early years 
when children start school or much later in life, it is key that 
people of all ages and abilities are ready to learn. This is why 
the Ontario Trillium Foundation will place priority on initiatives 
that:

Provide community-based learning opportunities and   •
create conditions for achievement for people of all ages 
and abilities; and

Help prepare children and youth for success. •

This includes, but is not limited to, broadening learning 
experiences for children and youth; helping children and youth remain and achieve in school; preparing 
young children to learn; providing opportunities for children and youth to experience positive personal 
growth; and improving adult literacy through resources and activities.

Healthier and more physically active Ontarians
Encouraging Ontarians to lead healthier lifestyles, as well as improving other determinants of health, such 
as air and water quality, and providing opportunities for people to enhance their health and well-being 
will lead to healthier and more physically active Ontarians. To this end, the Ontario Trillium Foundation 
will place priority on initiatives that:

Promote physical activity for people of all ages and •
abilities;

Promote recreational activities for people of all ages  •
and abilities;

Enhance and help protect human and •
ecosystem health;

Create conditions for people to reach their full health  •
and well-being potential; and

Promote cultural and artistic activities for people of •
all ages and abilities.
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Our Granting Priorities (Continued)

This includes, but is not limited to, promoting and increasing physical activity; increasing or sustaining 
recreational and leisure opportunities; helping communities take responsibility to protect the natural 
environment; supporting systems that sustain health and well-being; sustaining a healthy arts community; 
and celebrating and preserving heritage.

Enhanced employment and economic potential for workers and their families
The Ontario Trillium Foundation supports initiatives that are innovative and that stimulate economic 
growth. To this end, OTF will place priority on proposals that support organizations to build skills, create 
jobs and enhance economic potential for individuals and communities through initiatives that:

Provide skill development or employment opportunities;•

Sustain and promote a greener economy and community;•

Strengthen the economic health of a community; and•

Help further a community’s long-term vision and growth.•

This includes, but is not limited to, increasing opportunities for 
employment for those experiencing barriers including Aboriginal 
people, newcomers, people with disabilities and at risk youth; 
strengthening organizations and supporting initiatives that promote 
a sustainable environment; sustaining the economic viability of the 
community; and encouraging community planning processes.

More effective volunteers and more people engaged in their communities
Volunteers are the foundation of healthy and caring communities that are safe, clean, secure and vibrant. 
Providing people with opportunities to actively participate in activities or programs offered within their 
community also contributes to this. We support initiatives that:

This includes, but is not limited to, building community 
connections and awareness; promoting and increasing 
volunteerism, particularly among young people; enhancing 
the capacity of the volunteer sector and fostering strategic 
thinking and innovation; and building the capacity of charitable 
and not-for-profit organizations.

Create conditions to increase community engagement of  •
people of all ages, abilities and cultures;

Strengthen volunteerism among people of all ages, •
abilities and cultures; and

Strengthen the voluntary sector. •
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OTF Grants Reflect Cultural Mosaic

The Ontario Trillium Foundation prides itself on 
supporting creative initiatives that respond to 
the real needs of Ontario’s varied and evolving 
communities. With more than one-quarter of all 
Ontario residents born outside of Canada as of 2006 
and with immigrant numbers on the rise, the need to 
support Ontario’s diverse and dynamic communities 
is essential.

In 2008, the Foundation awarded grants to cultural 
groups throughout the province and across our four 
funding sectors: Arts and Culture, Human and Social Services, Sports and Recreation and Environment. 
The following grants reflect the cultural diversity of OTF’s granting and the worthwhile initiatives having 
an impact in Ontario communities.

Province-Wide

Environment & Diversity Project c/o Sustainability Network  

Grants from the Ontario Trillium Foundation have often been on the 
leading edge, helping to effect change and create new possibilities. 
Such is the case with a grant to this province-wide collaborative 
group, which seeks to improve ethnocultural diversity within 
Ontario’s environment sector.

A grant for $112,000 will allow this group to place ethnoculturally 
diverse professionals in environmental not-for-profit organizations. 
This will represent and engage diverse communities in 
environmental programs. An additional $352,000 from the OTF 

Future Fund will also help to inspire environmental non-profits to 
diversify their audience and organizations by providing a multi-level initiative that will lead to long-term 
sector transformation. 

Niagara

Neto Hatinakwe Onkwehowe Native Arts

Aboriginal art is an exciting field and an emerging art market that has truly arrived over the last decade. 
This group provides arts services to both Aboriginal and non-Aboriginal community members in the 
Niagara region, and acts as an advocate and promoter of Aboriginal artists in the area.

OTF is helping Neto Hatinakwe Onkwehowe Native Arts to increase Aboriginal cultural support, 
awareness and programming throughout Niagara thanks to a $65,300 grant. By hiring a researcher, 
writer and graphic designer this group will be able to develop and deliver an Aboriginal arts-and-culture 
education program for the Niagara community.

BUILDING HEALTHY AND VIBRANT COMMUNITIES

Featured Grants
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Featured Grants (continued)

Waterloo, Wellington, Dufferin

Planned Parenthood Waterloo Region

Women who come from war zone areas, such as Sudan and 
Afghanistan, come to Canada with substantially different and pressing 
needs, and face additional barriers compared to newcomers from  
non-war zone areas. Many of these women have been victims of rapes 
and sexual assaults and are left to deal with huge emotional and 
physical trauma on their own.

Planned Parenthood Waterloo Region understands this reality and is 
helping them cope with the support of an OTF grant for $44,100. The 
organization is providing these women with sexual health workshops 
in safe spaces, which are designed to meet their particular needs and 
provide individual support through peers and co-facilitators.

Toronto

IMPACT (Indian & Performance Art Collective of Toronto)

Too often, youth at-risk find themselves involved with guns and gangs simply because they lack 
access to other creative and physical outlets. IMPACT is a group that’s truly making a difference in 
their community by promoting physical and mental health, and diffusing aggression while teaching 
disciplines that have relevance to many of their participants’ cultural heritage. 

With the support of an OTF grant for $125,300, IMPACT is promoting physical and mental health by 
teaching South Asian performance and martial arts to youth at risk. 

Champlain

Comité d’action local Rideau-Vanier a/s Centre des services communautaire Vanier 

One of OTF’s granting priorities is to encourage Ontarians to 
lead healthier and more physically active lifestyles and this 
Francophone collaborative group is doing just that. With a 
mission to help Vanier residents improve their physical, mental 
and economic well-being, Comité d’action local Rideau-Vanier a/s 
Centre des services communautaire Vanier will build partnerships 
to enhance physical activity programming and promote healthy, 
active living with the help of a $100,000 OTF grant.

Children aged 4 – 12 years will have the opportunity to participate 
in soccer, swimming, day camps and organized physical activities 
as a result.
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Halton-Peel

Senior Tamils Society of Peel

The Tamil community is a relatively new community in Peel with much of the population being refugees 
from the civil war in Sri Lanka. Integration into the Canadian way of life can be a harrowing experience 
however the Senior Tamils Society of Peel is helping smooth the transition for seniors in their local 
Tamil community with support from OTF. 

A grant for $139,300 will pay for a project co-ordinator, space and equipment to help Tamil seniors 
overcome isolation. Outcomes will include increased volunteerism, participation in recreation and 
fitness programs and education about environmental issues.

Grey, Bruce, Huron, Perth

Maadookii Seniors Centre

Even small grants can have a big impact, and no one knows this better 
than the Maadookii Seniors centre. An OTF grant for $15,000 is helping 
with renovations to this group’s seniors centre to improve accessibility, 
energy efficiency and safety. Upgrades will help to increase participation 
of First Nation elders in all cultural activities as a result.

Whether in the streets of our major cities or in the most remote parts of 
our province, OTF is helping to build healthy and vibrant communities of 
all kinds.

Province-Wide

Association francophone de parents et d’enfants dyslexiques 

The only French language organization of its type in Ontario, Association francophone de parents et 
d’enfants dyslexiques is providing vital support to parents and teachers dealing with children who have 
learning disabilities often caused by some form of dyslexia. 

With the help of an OTF grant for $26,000, this group will develop a strategic plan, increase the 
efficiency of its website and provide the necessary support to this provincial organization and its 
capacity to offer support to Francophone children who have learning disabilities and to their teachers 
and parents.

Featured Grants
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Featured Grants (Continued)

Future Fund grants brighten Ontario’s future 

In 2007 the Ontario Trillium Foundation introduced a $2 million Future Fund program to enhance the 
future of Ontario’s communities. In its first year the fund supported the growth and effectiveness of the 
environment sector in Ontario.

In 2008, $2 million was again provided through the Future Fund to continue to build the leadership and 
capacity of the environment sector. An additional $2 million was also provided for a new initiative to 
benefit groups creating innovative economic opportunities in Ontario.

The following grants represent two of the groundbreaking initiatives that received funding this year:

Environment Part 2 
FarmON Alliance c/o FarmStart 

Ontario’s agricultural food sector is receiving support it needs 
to sustain and grow. FarmON Alliance will build a provincially 
co-ordinated alliance to support a new generation of ecological 
locally-focused farmers with the support of a Future Fund grant of 
$448,900. The initiative will address the issues of farmland access 
and succession, knowledge transfer, training and resources for 
new farmers. A number of current environment issues will also 
be addressed, including food security, farmland protection, urban 
sprawl, pollution prevention and human health. 

The agricultural food sector will also work together to support new 
farmers through regional workshops, new farmer resources, men-
torship and new relationship opportunities between new farmers 
and farmland owners.

Other organizations involved in this initiative include: FarmStart (Guelph), Ontario Farmland Trust 
(Guelph), Everdale Farm and Environmental Learning Centre (Hillsburgh), Kawartha Heritage Con-
servancy (Peterborough), Just Food (Ottawa), Eat Local Sudbury (Sudbury), L’Union des cultivateurs 
franco-ontariens – UFCO (Ottawa).

Creating Innovative Economic Opportunities 
LASI World Skills 

Every year, 2,500 immigrants, refugees and newcomers turn to Ottawa’s LASI World Skills, the coali-
tion of Local Agencies Serving Immigrants for help integrating into Canadian society. Understanding 
the barriers many newcomers face in securing employment, the agency provides language training, 
employment counselling and a host of services to help them adapt to the Canadian job market and to 
gain employment. 

A Foundation grant for $500,000 is supporting LASI’s effort to eliminate systemic barriers and enhance 
the ability of employers in the public, corporate and nonprofit sector to recruit, hire, orient and retain 
internationally trained workers.
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Granting Activities 2008-2009

Target Range

Success for Learners 10-20%

Healthier Ontarians 40-50%

Enhanced Economic Potential 10-20%

Volunteer Engagement 30-40%

Target Range

Arts & Culture 20-50%

Environment 5-20%

Human & Social Services 30-60%

Sports & Recreation 20-50%

Target Range

Capital 20-40%

OTF OVERALL GRANTS BY PRIORITY From April 1, 2008 to March 31, 2009

OTF OVERALL GRANTS BY SECTOR From April 1, 2008 to March 31, 2009

OTF OVERALL GRANTS BY BUDGET FUND From April 1, 2008 to March 31, 2009

GRANTS APPROVED - ALL PROGRAMS:

Grants Program
Amounts 
Approved

No. of 
Grants

Community Grants $81,116,500 1,366

Province-Wide $19,479,800 107

Future Fund $4,000,000 11

Total Grants Approved $104,596,300 1,484
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Grants Summary

Community Grants Amount Grants

Algoma, Cochrane, Manitoulin, Sudbury $3,296,600 88

Champlain $7,100,922 156

Durham, Haliburton, Kawartha, Pine Ridge $6,063,541 95

Essex, Kent, Lambton $4,204,600 83

Grand River $1,899,968 48

Grey, Bruce, Huron, Perth $2,429,800 81

Halton-Peel $9,340,900 101

Hamilton $3,062,500 55

Muskoka, Nipissing, Parry Sound, Timiskaming $1,953,600 46

Niagara $3,294,700 62

Northwestern $1,721,600 44

Quinte, Kingston, Rideau $3,839,200 99

Simcoe-York $8,187,400 84

Thames Valley $4,202,100 95

Toronto $15,290,100 140

Waterloo, Wellington, Dufferin $4,915,900 83

 Sub-Total $80,803,431 1,360

 Grants subsequently modified or rescinded $313,069 6

Total Community Grants $81,116,500 1,366

Total Province-Wide Grants $19,479,800 107

Future Fund Grants $4,000,000 11

TOTAL ALL GRANTS $104,596,300 1,484
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Community Grants
Algoma, Cochrane, Manitoulin, Sudbury

Organization Name Amount Term

Abitibi Golf Club $25,000 1 year

Aboriginal Peoples Alliance (Northern Ontario) $15,000 1 year

Algoma Paddlers Canoe & Kayak Club Inc. $17,000 1 year

Art Gallery of Algoma $14,500 1 year

Assiginack Recreational Park Playground Group c/o 
Corporation of the Township of Assiginack $15,000 1 year

Association Canadienne-Française de l'Ontario (du Grand Sudbury) Inc. $45,000 1 year

Bruce Mines Pastoral Charge $15,000 1 year

Bruce Mines Sno Glyders Snowmobile Club $15,000 1 year

Camp Source de Vie $70,000 1 year

Canadian Bushplane Heritage Centre $45,000 18 months

Capreol Curling Club $50,000 1 year

Centre de counselling familial de Timmins Inc./
Timmins Family Counselling Centre Inc. $16,700 1 year

Centre de santé communautaire de Sudbury $50,000 1 year

Centre des aînés de Hearst a/s Club Soleil des Aînés $120,000 3 years

Children First c/o Sudbury Manitoulin Children's Foundation $150,000 3 years

Cinefest; The Sudbury Film Festival $80,000 1 year

Community Food First c/o The Foodshed Project $83,600 2 years

Community Living Algoma $58,700 1 year

Community Living Greater Sudbury/Intégration 
Communautaire Grand Sudbury $15,000 1 year

Conseil des Arts de Hearst $14,600 1 year

Constance Lake First Nation $14,100 1 year

Corporation of the Town of Blind River $25,000 1 year

Corporation of the Township of White River $33,300 1 year

Credit Counselling Services of Cochrane District $90,000 2 years

Dolphin Aquatic Club $15,000 1 year

Dubreuilville Pivot-Jeunesse Inc. $15,000 1 year

Echo Bay Elks Club Incorporated $14,700 1 year

Echoes Drum Festival Sault Ste. Marie $27,600 6 months

Elgin Street Mission (Sudbury) $15,000 1 year

Elliot Lake Lifelong Learning $27,500 1 year

Espanola Elks Lodge #346, of the Benevolent & 
Protective Order of Elks of Canada Incorporated $15,000 1 year
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Community Grants

Organization Name Amount Term

Espanola Historical Society $15,000 1 year

FormationPLUS $19,000 1 year

Great Spirit Circle Trail Inc. $15,000 1 year

Kamiskotia Snow Resort (Non-Profit) Inc. $75,000 1 year

Kapuskasing Public Library c/o Township of Kapuskasing $30,000 1 year

KidsHope: Promoting Healthy Lifestyles Inc. $30,000 1 year

Kinsmen Club of Sault Ste. Marie $12,000 1 year

Laurentian Community Track - Track North Athletic Club 
c/o Ontario Track and Field Association $55,000 1 year

Le Centre Alpha-culturel de Sudbury $40,000 1 year

Le Festival de la mauvaise herbe et le Salon du livre 
jeunesse a/s Le Salon du Livre du Grand Sudbury $70,000 1 year

Le Froche a/s Le Carrefour Francophone de Sudbury $50,000 1 year

Le Groupe d'Appui VIH-SIDA de Sudbury $60,000 2 years

Le Groupe SONnord $3,000 1 year

Learning Disabilities Association of Sudbury $66,600 2 years

Les Entreprises Forma-Jeunes Inc. $80,000 2 years

Matheson & District Agricultural Society $10,000 1 year

Michipicoten Rod and Gun Club $3,900 1 year

Multiple Sclerosis Society of Canada - Sudbury Chapter 
c/o Multiple Sclerosis Society of Canada $60,000 1 year

Municipalité de Mattice-Val Côté $40,000 1 year

Municipality of French River $25,000 1 year

Neegoni Wabun Gi Gay Win Lodge Inc. $23,500 1 year

Northern Ontario Families of Children with Cancer $80,000 2 years

Providence Bay Curling Club $15,000 1 year

Rainbow Routes Association $50,000 1 year

Rockhaven $60,000 2 years

Rotary Club of Sault Ste. Marie $67,500 1 year

Royal Canadian Legion Branch 177 - Little Current $15,000 1 year

Royal Canadian Legion Branch 194 - Hornepayne $15,000 1 year

Sault North Waste Management Council $35,800 1 year

Sault Ste Marie Model Aircraft Radio Control Club Inc. $14,900 1 year

Sault Ste. Marie Family YMCA $30,000 1 year

Sault Ste. Marie Sports Council Inc. $45,800 1 year

Algoma, Cochrane, Manitoulin, Sudbury (Continued)
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Community Grants

Organization Name Amount Term

Sault Theatre Workshop $15,000 1 year

Searchmont Ski Runners Inc. $30,000 1 year

Seizure and Brain Injury Centre $50,000 1 year

Serpent River First Nation $15,000 1 year

Serpent River First Nation $14,700 1 year

Sheguiandah First Nation $6,500 1 year

Sheshegwaning First Nation $15,000 1 year

Social Integration Program and Community Action for Equity 
(SIP-CAFÉ) c/o Rotary Club of Chapleau Ontario Inc. $34,200 1 year

Soo Arena Association $77,300 1 year

Sudbury Laurentian Swim Club $40,000 1 year

The Corporation of the City of Elliot Lake $13,100 1 year

The Corporation of the Township of Assiginack $15,000 1 year

The Corporation of the Township of Dubreuilville $13,200 1 year

The Corporation of the Township of Laird $35,000 1 year

The Sault Ste. Marie Community Theatre Centre $15,000 1 year

Timmins Food Bank, a division of St. Martin de Porres Charities $36,000 1 year

United Chiefs and Councils of Manitoulin $78,500 3 years

United Way of Sault Ste. Marie $6,000 1 year

United Way/Centraide Sudbury and District $90,000 2 years

Vincent Place Inc. $50,000 2 years

Volunteer Sudbury/Bénévolat Sudbury $120,000 3 years

Warren and Area Historical Society $5,300 1 year

Wawa Cross-Country Ski Club $12,500 1 year

Weengushk Film Institute $75,000 18 months

Wikwemikong Heritage Organization $15,000 6 months

Total $3,296,600

Total Grants 88 

Algoma, Cochrane, Manitoulin, Sudbury
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Community Grants
Champlain

Organization Name Amount Term

1st Richmond Scout Group c/o Scouts Canada $8,600 6 months

Aboriginal Experiences, Arts and Culture $43,900 1 year

Acadiens & Franco-Ontariens en Famille a/s Groupe action pour 
enfant, la famille et la communauté de Prescott-Russell $21,500 1 year

Action des parents pour l'entraide et l'encadrement des jeunes $45,000 3 years

Action et Développement Jeunesse $17,600 7 months

Akwesasne Economic Development Agency $100,000 2 years

Arladun Somali-Canadian Society $60,600 2 years

Army, Navy & Air Force Veterans in Canada Unit 342 $12,000 1 year

Arnprior/McNab Ringette Association c/o Ontario Ringette Association $6,500 1 year

Arts Ottawa East $25,500 1 year

Artswell $60,000 2 years

Association canadienne-française de l'Ontario, Conseil 
régional de Stormont, Dundas & Glengarry $37,200 1 year

Aultsville Theatre $60,000 1 year

Bereaved Families of Ontario - Pembroke $65,000 3 years

Bonnechere River Watershed Project $135,800 2 years

Bonnechere Valley Youth Activity Centre $45,300 1 year

Bottleworks c/o Operation Go Home $130,000 2 years

Boys and Girls Club of Cornwall/SDG $59,200 1 year

Brain Injury Association of the Ottawa Valley $45,000 1 year

Breast Cancer Action $44,000 2 years

Bronson Centre $115,000 6 months

Camp Fortune Ski Club $20,200 1 year

Canadian Federation of Humane Societies $20,000 1 year

Canadian Organic Growers, Ottawa Chapter 
c/o Canadian Organic Growers $120,000 3 years

Canadian Pony Club, St. Lawrence and Ottawa 
Valley Region c/o Canadian Pony Club $20,000 1 year

Canton de Hawkesbury Est $27,900 6 months

Capital Chordettes $14,900 1 year

Capital Xelles Basketball Club $10,900 1 year

Causeway Work Centre $75,400 2 years

Celebration of People c/o Citizen Advocacy of Ottawa $59,500 18 months

Centre culturel le Chenail $25,000 1 year
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Community Grants

Organization Name Amount Term

Centre d'artistes Voix Visuelle $50,000 18 months

Centre des services communautaires Vanier $50,000 1 year

Chalk River and Area Lions Club $43,800 3 months

Chevaliers de Colomb, Conseil St. Jacques d'Embrun 6301 $42,000 1 year

Church of St. John the Evangelist - Ottawa $37,200 1 year

Club Bourg Joie d'Or de Bourget a/s Fédération des 
aînés et des retraités francophones de l'Ontario $13,200 1 year

Club Colombien Fraternité de l'Orignal $44,000 6 months

Club d'âge d'or du Réveil de Vankleek Hill $4,900 1 year

Club de gymnastique les Sittelles $13,500 6 months

Club de l'amicale du village de l'Orignal $40,000 1 year

Club joie de vivre 50+ $47,400 1 year

Comité d'action local Rideau-Vanier a/s Centre 
des services communautaires Vanier $100,000 2 years

Communauté Congolaise du Canada/Ottawa-Gatineau $20,600 1 year

Community Living Glengarry $72,000 2 years

Coopérative multiservices francophones de l'Ouest d'Ottawa $100,000 2 years

Cooperative Policing, Killaloe Area $30,400 1 year

Cornwall and District Immigrant Services Agency $62,800 1 year

Cornwall Carbon Reduction Initiative $72,400 2 years

Cornwall Minor Football Association $34,100 6 months

Créations In Vivo $14,400 1 year

Diefenbunker, Canada's Cold War Museum $75,000 1 year

Dundas County Food Bank $25,000 6 months

EAGLE Training Centre $45,000 1 year

Ecology Ottawa $100,000 2 years

Elizabeth Fry Society of Ottawa $30,000 1 year

Entraide budgétaire Ottawa $104,300 2 years

Erin Society of Ottawa $75,000 1 year

Eritrean Community Association Ottawa $20,000 1 year

ESPACE francophone Ottawa a/s Centre de ressources 
communautaires Orléans-Cumberland $60,000 1 year

Family Counseling Centre of Cornwall and United Counties $50,700 1 year

Festival franco-ontarien (2006) $50,000 2 years

Five County Trail Association $15,000 1 year

Champlain
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Community Grants

Organization Name Amount Term

Gloucester South Raiders Minor Football Club $42,000 1 year

Gloucester Synchronized Swim Club $15,100 1 year

Greening Ottawa Non-Profits c/o EnviroCentre $101,000 2 years

Greening Sacred Spaces - Ottawa c/o Faith & the Common Good $100,500 3 years

Groupe de danse traditionnelle Burundaise Abezamutima $15,000 1 year

Highland Park Lawn Bowling Club $16,500 1 year

JazzWorks $12,000 1 year

Jer's Vision: Canada's Youth Diversity Initiative $25,000 1 year

Jewish Family Services $38,000 2 years

Just Food c/o Social Planning Council of Ottawa $62,500 1 year

Kanata Cross Country Ski Club $38,600 1 year

KidActive - Healthy Kids, Communities and Outdoors $118,700 2 years

KidSport Ottawa c/o Sport Alliance of Ontario $70,000 2 years

Lancaster & District Curling Club $40,000 9 months

LASI World Skills $139,800 2 years

Leadership Ottawa $46,000 2 years

Leading Note Foundation $25,000 1 year

Les contes nomades $6,000 1 year

Little Voice Foundation $30,000 1 year

Living Wall Project c/o Eastern Ontario Training Board $62,000 1 year

Maison familiale rurale franco-ontarienne $90,000 2 years

Manotick Curling Center $10,600 6 months

Monument de la francophonie de Cornwall 
a/s Club Richelieu de Cornwall $25,300 1 year

Mount Martin Ski Club $65,000 1 year

Myers Riders Football Club $30,000 6 months

Nation Building Committee c/o Algonquins of Pikwàkanagàn $51,000 6 months

Nation Municipality $15,000 1 year

Neil Squire Society, Central Regional Office 
c/o Neil Squire Society of Canada $45,000 2 years

Nepean Corona School of Gymnastics $40,500 1 year

Nepean Girls Hockey Association $30,500 1 year

Nepean Minor Hockey Association $19,000 1 year

Nepean-Ottawa Diving Club $9,800 6 months

Champlain (Continued)
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Community Grants

Organization Name Amount Term

OCRI VIE Assistive Technology Training and Volunteer 
Program c/o Ottawa Carleton Learning Foundation $125,000 2 years

Odawa Native Friendship Centre $14,000 6 months

One Change $61,800 1 year

Oneness-World Communications $85,000 3 years

Opeongo Seniors Centre $8,400 1 year

Orleans Bengals Football Club $27,200 6 months

Orleans Nordic Ski Club $16,000 1 year

Ottawa Arts Court Foundation $123,000 2 years

Ottawa Chamber Music Society $90,000 2 years

Ottawa Children's Choir $19,900 2 years

Ottawa Chinese Community Service Centre $30,000 1 year

Ottawa Chinese-Canadian Heritage Centre $50,400 1 year

Ottawa Community Concert Band $13,800 1 year

Ottawa District Badminton Association $18,700 2 years

Ottawa Festivals $90,000 2 years

Ottawa Guardsman Basketball Club $31,700 2 years

Ottawa Kids Triathlon $7,500 1 year

Ottawa Museum Network $30,000 18 months

Ottawa Orienteering Club c/o Ontario Orienteering Association $12,500 2 years

Ottawa River Canoe Club $38,400 1 year

Ottawa Symphony Orchestra $36,000 3 years

Parkdale United Church Orchestra $15,000 1 year

Partenariat pour prévenir l'itinérance à Ottawa a/s Action-Logement $32,000 1 year

Pembroke & Area Cross Country Ski Club $42,200 1 year

Polaris Institute $132,500 2 years

Polish Combatants' Association in Canada, Ottawa Branch 8 $50,000 1 year

Pregnancy Support Services of Upper Ottawa Valley $8,600 1 year

Prescott-Russell Environmental Outreach Initiative c/o Association 
française des propriétaires de boisés privés de l'Est de l'Ontario $52,500 1 year

Quigley Highlanders Pipes and Drums $42,600 1 year

Renfrew Agricultural Society $15,000 1 year

Richmond Munster Minor Hockey Association $13,500 1 year

Rideau Street Youth Enterprises $70,000 1 year

Champlain
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Community Grants

Organization Name Amount Term

Royal Canadian Legion Branch 632 - Orleans $35,322 6 months

Russell Association for the Performing Arts $40,000 8 months

Scouts Canada, 1st Greenwood Group c/o Scouts Canada $13,500 1 year

Scouts du district d'Ottawa $27,000 1 year

Skate Cornwall $4,300 1 year

Social Planning Council of Ottawa $78,800 2 years

Société franco-ontarienne d'histoire et de 
généalogie, Régionale St-Laurent $45,700 1 year

Soma Selepak Culture Association of Ottawa $15,000 1 year

Somerset West Community Health Centre $75,000 6 months

St. John Ambulance, Cornwall Branch c/o St. John Council for Ontario $20,000 1 year

St. Lawrence Rowing Club $33,000 1 year

SuzukiMusic $14,000 6 months

Ten Oaks Project $53,000 2 years

Township of Bonnechere Valley $32,200 6 months

Township of Champlain $57,000 1 year

Union des haïtiens de l'Outaouais $20,700 1 year

United Way of Stormont, Dundas & Glengarry $14,200 1 year

Upasana the Spirit of Dance $30,000 1 year

Valley Employee and Family Assistance Program $25,000 6 months

Valley Heritage Radio $35,000 1 year

Victim Assistance Services of Ottawa-Carleton $113,600 2 years

Village d'Antan Franco-Ontarien $23,000 6 months

Village de Casselman $20,800 6 months

Volunteer Fair Project c/o Sexual Assault Support Services for 
Women of Stormont, Dundas, Glengarry and Akwesasne $40,000 6 months

Wabano Centre for Aboriginal Health $140,600 2 years

Western Ottawa Community Resource Centre $57,900 2 years

Wetland Education and Workshops c/o Ducks Unlimited Canada $77,200 2 years

Whitewater Historical Society $7,300 1 year

World Inter-Action Mondiale $39,000 1 year

Total $7,100,922

Total Grants 156 

Champlain (Continued)
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Community Grants
Durham, Haliburton, Kawartha, Pine Ridge

Organization Name Amount Term

428 Peterborough Wing Royal Canadian Air Force Association $60,000 1 year

Activity Haven Senior Centre $14,100 1 year

Ajax - Pickering Ringette Association c/o Ajax Ringette Association $150,000 3 years

Ajax Skating Club $13,500 1 year

Apsley and District Lions Club $82,100 1 year

Beaverton Special Events $56,900 1 year

Bethesda House $62,300 1 year

Beyond the Blue Box in Northumberland County $125,000 1 year

Big Brothers and Big Sisters Association of Peterborough Inc. $60,600 3 years

Big Brothers and Sisters of Clarington $15,000 1 year

Big Brothers Big Sisters of Kawartha Lakes-Haliburton $65,000 3 years

Blueboxing@Trent c/o Community Living Peterborough $67,400 2 years

Brighton Masonic Temple Association $20,000 1 year

Campbellford & District Curling & Racquet Club Inc. $15,000 1 year

Campbellford Lawn Bowling Club c/o Ontario Lawn Bowls Association $4,700 1 year

Canadian Ski Patrol Kawartha Zone c/o Canadian Ski Patrol System $62,600 1 year

Cannington Business Association $12,800 1 year

Cannington Curling Club Inc. $104,200 1 year

Community Care Northumberland $15,000 1 year

Community Foundation of Durham Region $46,100 2 years

Community Living Ajax-Pickering and Whitby $72,900 1 year

Community Living Haliburton County $33,000 2 years

Corporation of the Municipality of Port Hope $15,000 1 year

Corporation of the Township of Uxbridge $87,600 1 year

Courtice Lions Millennium Trail Project c/o Lions Club of Courtice $81,300 1 year

Creating Community Recreation Partnerships for Children 
with Disabilities c/o Five Counties Children's Centre $81,900 2 years

Curve Lake First Nation $133,300 3 years

Down Syndrome Association of Peterborough $25,000 6 months

Durham Deaf Services Inc. $232,000 5 years

Durham Family Court Clinic $9,300 1 year

Durham Region Unemployed Help Centre $36,000 6 months

Durham Sustain Ability $193,800 3 years

Durham Youth Housing & Support Services $175,000 3 years
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Community Grants
Durham, Haliburton, Kawartha, Pine Ridge (Continued)

Organization Name Amount Term

Durham Youth Road Safety Coalition c/o 
Head Injury Association of Durham $13,300 6 months

Empowering Youth 4 Global Change c/o Jamaican Self-Help $122,600 3 years

Enhancing Social Planning Capacity in Durham c/o 
Community Development Council Durham $111,500 2 years

Environmental Earth Angels $47,800 1 year

Feed the Need in Durham c/o College Park 
Seventh-Day Adventist Church $225,000 3 years

Food for Kids Peterborough c/o United Way 
of Peterborough and District $61,300 2 years

Gamebridge Women's Institute c/o Federated 
Women's Institutes of Ontario $7,600 1 year

Greening Sacred Spaces - Durham c/o Faith & the Common Good $112,000 4 years

Habitat for Humanity Durham Inc. $225,000 3 years

Haliburton Sculpture Forest et al $30,000 18 months

Harcourt Park Inc. $11,000 1 year

Harmony United Church $10,741 1 year

Heritage Pavilion Stage Performances $25,000 2 years

John Howard Society of Kawartha Lakes & Haliburton $46,000 1 year

John Howard Society of Peterborough $62,100 1 year

Kawartha Food Share $99,000 2 years

Kawartha Lakes Risk Watch $37,400 1 year

Kawartha Lakes\Haliburton Domestic Violence Coordinating 
Committee c/o Victoria County Women's Resource Services $73,700 2 years

Kawartha Trans Canada Trail c/o Kawartha Lakes Green Trails Alliance $75,000 1 year

Kawartha Youth Orchestra $18,800 1 year

Kinmount Agricultural Society $150,000 1 year

Little Britain Field Project c/o Oakwood Lions Club $30,000 1 year

Luke's Place Shelters Initiative c/o Luke's Place Support 
and Resource Centre for Women and Children $225,000 3 years

Newcastle Memorial Arena Music Room 
Project c/o Newcastle Skating Club $45,500 1 year

Northern Portugal Cultural Centre $150,000 1 year

Northumberland Food for Thought c/o Northumberland United Way $50,800 2 years

Northumberland Land Trust $23,000 1 year

Omemee Curling and Recreation Club Inc. $75,700 1 year

Oshawa Community Health Centre $100,900 1 year
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Community Grants
Durham, Haliburton, Kawartha, Pine Ridge

Organization Name Amount Term

Participation House Project (Durham Region) $146,100 3 years

Peterborough Children's Chorus $42,000 2 years

Peterborough Rugby Union Football Club $44,200 1 year

Peterborough Symphony Orchestra $29,800 18 months

Precious Minds Support Services $15,000 1 year

Roseneath Agricultural Society c/o Corporation 
of the Township of Alnick/Haldimand $15,000 1 year

Royal Canadian Legion Branch 103 - Campbellford $12,300 1 year

Royal Canadian Legion Branch 184 - Woodville $14,000 1 year

Sadleir House and OPIRG Accessibility Collaborative 
c/o P. R. Community and Student Association $41,700 1 year

Schoolhouse Historical Society c/o Municipality of Highlands East $15,000 1 year

Scugog Council for the Arts $47,300 3 years

Scugog Cultural Centre c/o Lake Scugog Historical Society $104,000 1 year

Scugog Soccer Association $36,000 1 year

Soul Carnival c/o INNRESPONSE $15,000 1 year

South Central Ontario Big Game Association $8,100 1 year

The 4th Line Theatre Company of Peterborough $87,000 2 years

The Art School of Peterborough $15,000 1 year

The Help Centre of Northumberland $75,700 3 years

The Seniors Citizen's Club of Fenelon Falls $59,000 1 year

Together Education and Mothering c/o Alpha House 
of Northumberland for Young Mothers $77,500 3 years

Township of Douro-Dummer $19,700 6 months

Township of Otonabee-South Monaghan $14,500 1 year

Trent Centre for Community Based Education $97,900 2 years

Trent Hills Skate Park Committee c/o Municipality of Trent Hills $40,000 1 year

Trinity United Church - Omemee $21,000 1 year

Uxbridge Senior Citizens Club c/o United Senior Citizens of Ontario $58,000 1 year

Uxbridge Youth Centre c/o Optimist Club of Uxbridge $80,000 2 years

Uxbridge-Scott Historical Society $65,700 1 year

Villiers Community Centre Committee c/o 
Township of Otonabee-South Monaghan $75,000 1 year

Warsaw Women's Institute c/o Federated Women's Institutes $2,700 1 year

Woodville & District Lions Club $65,000 1 year
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Community Grants
Durham, Haliburton, Kawartha, Pine Ridge

Organization Name Amount Term

WrapAround Northumberland c/o Children's 
Aid Society of Northumberland $105,300 3 years

YWCA of Peterborough Victoria & Haliburton $24,900 1 year

Total $6,063,541

Total Grants 95 
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Community Grants
Essex, Kent, Lambton

Organization Name Amount Term

A Community Affair, Practice Sun Safety Everywhere 
Initiative c/o Riverside Optimist Club $75,000 1 year

Actors Theatre of Windsor $112,500 3 years

Adult Language and Learning $57,500 1 year

Art Gallery of Windsor $150,000 1 year

Artcite Incorporated $75,000 1 year

Barn Again - Historic Barn Renewal, John R. Park Homestead 
Conservation Area c/o Lions Club of Kingsville $74,600 1 year

Big Sister Association of Sarnia-Lambton Incorporated $62,700 2 years

Blenheim Youth Centre Optimist Club $94,500 2 years

Blenheim-Kent Golden Eagles Gymnastic Club $8,200 1 year

Boys and Girls Club of Windsor and Essex County $14,500 1 year

Brooke Alvinston Skating Club $5,800 1 year

Centre francophone pour immigrants de Windsor - Essex $5,100 1 year

Chatham Camera Club c/o Canadian Association for Photographic Art $14,000 1 year

Chatham Masonic Temple Association Inc. $36,300 1 year

Chatham-Kent Safe Communities c/o Safe Communities Foundation $20,000 1 year

Colchester South and Harrow Agricultural Society $15,000 1 year

Community Gathering Centre c/o Corporation 
of the Township of Pelee $7,300 1 year

Corporation of the Town of Petrolia $39,600 1 year

Delaware Nation Council, Moravian of the Thames First Nation $180,400 3 years

Distress Centre of Windsor-Essex County $12,000 1 year

Erie North Shore Basketball $11,500 1 year

Essex and Community Historical Research Society (ECHRS) $36,700 1 year

Essex County Associated Growers $1,800 1 year

Essex County Chinese Canadian Association $75,000 1 year

Essex County Steam & Gas Engine Museum Inc. $13,700 1 year

Family Service Windsor-Essex County $5,000 3 months

Fort Malden Guild of Arts & Crafts $27,700 1 year

Go For Health c/o YMCA of Windsor-Essex County $130,000 2 years

Goodwill Industries, Essex, Kent, Lambton $15,000 1 year

Grand Bend Community Foundation $24,400 1 year

Harmony for Youth Inc. $12,000 1 year

Inn of the Good Shepherd (Sarnia) Inc. $40,000 1 year
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Community Grants
Essex, Kent, Lambton (Continued)

Organization Name Amount Term

J.G. Taylor Community Centre Inc. $73,400 1 year

Lambton Central Petrolia Optimist Club $9,000 1 year

Lambton County Developmental Services $75,000 1 year

Lambton County Science Fair $10,400 1 year

Lawrence House Centre for the Arts $135,900 2 years

Leamington Cougars Basketball Association $8,000 1 year

Learning Disabilities Association of Windsor-Essex County $50,700 1 year

Maynard Avian Rehabilitation Centre $24,000 1 year

Mnaasged Child and Family Services $20,000 1 year

New Horizons for Youth (Windsor) $12,000 2 years

North American Black Historical Museum & Cultural Centre, Inc. $76,800 2 years

Occupational Health Clinics for Ontario Workers $56,700 1 year

Outdoor Sports Field Fencing Project c/o 
Leamington Minor Soccer Association $75,000 1 year

Pelee Island Bird Observatory (PIBO) $87,000 2 years

Pelee Island Community Arts $46,000 1 year

Phoenix Wholistic Health Centre $74,300 1 year

Points Eagle Radio Inc. $44,000 1 year

Premier Baseball Diamond Project c/o 
Amherstburg Minor Baseball Association $75,000 1 year

Prism Centre for Audiology and Children's Rehabilitation $111,000 2 years

Réseau des femmes du sud de l'Ontario Sarnia/Lambton $7,800 1 year

Riverside Figure Skating Club $10,000 1 year

Rose City Athletic Organization $52,200 2 years

Royal Canadian Legion Branch 18 - Wallaceburg $25,000 1 year

Royal Canadian Legion Branch 338 - Harrow $15,000 1 year

Royal Canadian Legion Branch 403 - Pelee Island $59,400 1 year

Royal Canadian Legion Branch 635 - Brigden $12,000 1 year

Sandwich Community Health Centre Inc. $14,400 1 year

Sarnia-Lambton Business Development Corporation $43,400 1 year

Sarnia-Lambton Community Concerns for the Medically Fragile $15,000 1 year

Sexual Assault Survivors' Centre Sarnia-Lambton $115,000 2 years

Shores of Erie International Wine Festival $74,100 1 year
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Community Grants
Essex, Kent, Lambton

Organization Name Amount Term

Southern Ontario Locomotive Restoration Society - Windsor 
Chapter c/o Southern Ontario Locomotive Restoration Society $15,000 1 year

Spirit of Windsor Youth Band $6,600 1 year

St. Demetrios Greek Orthodox Church $64,000 3 years

Thames Horizon Shuffle Club $14,900 1 year

The Hospice of Windsor and Essex County Inc. $165,000 3 years

Union Culturelle des Franco-Ontariennes (UFCO), Place du Partage, 
Place Concorde, Centre Communautaire de Chatham-Kent Girouette 
a/s Carrefour des Femmes du Sud-Ouest de L'Ontario (CFSOO)

$25,600 1 year

United Way of Chatham-Kent $25,000 1 year

United Way of Sarnia-Lambton $106,800 3 years

Victim Services of Sarnia - Lambton $3,500 6 months

Victorian Order of Nurses Chatham-Kent, Ontario 
Branch c/o VON Canada - Ontario Branch $142,600 2 years

Wallaceburg Minor Lacrosse Association $13,100 6 months

Windsor and Essex County Crime Stoppers Inc. $11,300 1 year

Windsor Community Concert Band Inc. $31,000 1 year

Windsor Endowment for the Arts $25,000 8 months

Windsor Essex County Festival Network $113,400 2 years

Windsor International Film Festival $121,000 3 years

Windsor Lifeline Outreach Inc. $52,700 1 year

Windsor Pride Community $105,000 2 years

WindsorEssex Community Foundation $56,600 2 years

Windsor-Essex Therapeutic Riding Association $146,200 3 years

Total $4,204,600

Total Grants 83
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Community Grants
Grand River

Organization Name Amount Term

611 Harvard Mark 2 Squadron Royal Canadian 
Air Cadets Sponsoring Committee $25,000 1 year

B.R.A.V.E. c/o Nova Vita Domestic Violence Prevention Services $102,600 2 years

Big Brothers & Big Sisters Association of Haldimand-Norfolk Inc. $64,400 1 year

Brant Branch Foresters c/o Participation House Brantford $50,000 1 year

Brant Children's Services Committee - Service 
Coordination Review Working Group c/o Contact Brant 
for Children's and Developmental Services

$9,000 6 months

Brant Historical Society $51,600 1 year

Brantford Arts Block $121,400 18 months

Brantford International Jazz Festival Inc. $30,000 2 years

Brantford Opera Guild $7,200 3 years

Brantford Swimming Club $15,000 6 months

Brantford/Brant Good Food Box Program c/o Community 
Resource & Employment Service (Brantford) $47,800 2 years

Cayuga Gymnastics Club $54,000 1 year

Columbian Properties Brantford Inc. $39,800 1 year

Community Forest Health Network - Norfolk Federation 
of Agriculture c/o Ontario Federation of Agriculture $45,000 2 years

Community Resource & Employment Service (Brantford) $118,000 2 years

Community Support Centre of Haldimand-Norfolk $30,000 15 months

De dwa da dehs nye>s Aboriginal Health Centre $72,200 1 year

Delhi & District Horticultural Society $6,700 1 year

Docks Phase II c/o Port Dover Board of Trade $90,000 1 year

Dunnville Figure Skating Club $3,000 6 months

Etonia United Church c/o Princeton Pastoral Charge $4,700 1 year

Habitat Haldimand Inc. $27,500 1 year

Hagersville District Lions Club Incorporated $50,000 6 months

Haldimand Agricultural Community Centre $15,000 1 year

Haldimand Bird Observatory $7,000 1 year

Haldimand Youth Soccer Club $15,000 1 year

Haldimand-Norfolk Literacy Council $60,700 18 months

Hamilton Place Conservatory - Friends of Paris Culture $15,200 4 months

Ichthys Theatre Productions, Inc. $51,300 2 years

Master Aging Plan for Brantford c/o Alzheimer Society of Brant $23,100 7 months
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Community Grants
Grand River

Organization Name Amount Term

Mossaaiic Connections $16,800 6 months

Norfolk Little People's Day Care Inc. $15,000 1 year

Paris Curling Club $14,100 1 year

Port Dover Yacht Club $50,000 1 year

Royal Canadian Legion Branch 142 - Dunnville $12,468 6 months

Royal Canadian Legion Branch 379 - Port Rowan $58,000 1 year

Silver Lake Rowing Club Inc. $40,000 1 year

Simcoe and District Youth Soccer Club Inc. $50,000 1 year

Simcoe Curling Club $65,000 1 year

Simcoe Minor Baseball Association $11,300 1 year

Six Nations Police $74,300 18 months

Telephone City Musical Society $3,600 1 year

The Grand River Chorus Association Inc. $14,600 1 year

The Lower Grand River Land Trust Inc. $10,000 6 months

The Vittoria and District Foundation $14,600 1 year

United Alumni Senior Drum & Bugle Corps $48,000 1 year

Victim Services of Haldimand-Norfolk $76,300 1 year

Why Not City Missions Brantford $73,700 18 months

Total $1,899,968 

Total Grants 48
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Community Grants
Grey, Bruce, Huron, Perth

Organization Name Amount Term

2008 Bruce County International Plowing Match 
c/o Ontario Plowmen's Association $30,300 3 months

Alzheimer Society of Perth County $76,900 3 years

Arboretum Alliance c/o The Optimist Club of Sydenham & District $39,100 1 year

Bayfield International Croquet Club (BICC) $15,000 1 year

Bayfield River Valley Trail Association $15,000 1 year

Beautiful Joe Heritage Society $15,000 8 months

Bluewater Regional Science & Technology Fair $38,400 3 years

Brodhagen and District Chamber of Commerce $39,700 1 year

Bruce Grey Huron Perth Georgian Triangle Training Board $195,200 3 years

Bruce Peninsula Association for Community Living $85,000 2 years

Brussels Flying Club $15,000 1 year

Caledon Contemporaries $25,000 6 months

Central Peninsula Snow-Drifters $30,000 6 months

Centre for Applied Renewable Energy (CfARE) $45,900 1 year

Chepstow and District Lions Club Foundation $15,000 1 year

Choices for Change: Alcohol, Drug and Gambling Counselling Centre $104,800 2 years

Colborne Builds A Community Playground 
Committee c/o Morning Star Masonic Lodge $33,700 6 months

Corporation of the Municipality of Meaford $31,800 4 months

Corporation of the Municipality of West Perth $30,000 1 year

Corporation of the Town of Hanover $13,300 1 year

Crossover Festival of Music (Wingham) Limited $77,000 2 years

Desboro Agricultural Society $63,700 1 year

Friends of Sauble Beach $15,000 1 year

Georgian Bay Folk Society $85,000 2 years

Grey Bruce Palliative Care-Hospice Association Inc. $15,000 6 months

Grey Granite Club $15,000 1 year

Hanover Senior Citizens Friendship Club $13,200 6 months

Huron County Crime Stoppers Inc. $12,000 6 months

Huron Pioneer Thresher and Hobby Association $15,000 1 year

Imperial Order Daughters of the Empire - White Cloud 
Chapter c/o Imperial Order Daughters of the Empire $7,000 1 year

Kincardine and District Lions Club $30,000 1 year
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Community Grants
Grey, Bruce, Huron, Perth

Organization Name Amount Term

Kincardine Area Bid Euchre Shooter Card Club 
(KABESCC) c/o The Municipality of Kincardine $23,100 6 months

Kinsmen Club of Listowel $45,000 1 year

Maadookii Seniors Centre $15,000 1 year

Markdale Country Club $15,000 1 year

Maxwell Seniors Young at Heart Club #772 c/o 
The United Seniors Citizens of Ontario $14,900 1 year

Meaford & District Chamber of Commerce $35,000 21 months

Mitchell Curling Club $7,500 1 year

Mitchell Minor Sports $5,000 1 year

Municipality of Huron East $10,000 6 months

Municipality of South Huron $15,000 6 months

North Perth Outlaws Lacrosse c/o The Howick Optimist Club $13,700 1 year

Off the Wall Stratford Artists' Alliance $14,900 1 year

Optimist Club of Listowel $55,000 1 year

Osprey Museum $10,000 1 year

Owen Sound Fast Pitch Association $10,000 6 months

Owen Sound Highland Dancers $11,900 1 year

Owen Sound Museums $7,500 1 year

Participation Lodge - Grey Bruce $15,000 1 year

Perth County Historical Foundation $40,000 1 year

Reading Rescue Ontario $28,700 1 year

Restoring the Circle c/o United Way of Bruce Grey $35,000 1 year

Rotary Club of Listowel Inc. $10,900 1 year

Rotary Club of Stratford $33,900 1 year

Royal Canadian Legion Branch 102 - Walkerton $51,800 1 year

Royal Canadian Legion Branch 109 - Goderich $12,500 3 months

Royal Canadian Legion Branch 218 Brussels $15,000 1 year

Royal Canadian Legion Branch 285 - Dundalk $20,000 1 year

Safe 'n Sound Residence $29,000 6 months

Shakespeare Opti-Mrs c/o The Optimist Club of Shakespeare, Ontario $5,300 1 year

South Huron Chamber of Commerce $25,500 3 years

St. John Ambulance - South Grey-Bruce Branch c/o 
The Ontario Council of the Order of St. John $21,700 9 months

Ontario Trillium Foundation Annual Report 2007-200838 Annual Report 2008-2009



Community Grants
Grey, Bruce, Huron, Perth (Continued)

Organization Name Amount Term

Stratford & Perth County Community Foundation $55,400 2 years

Stratford Camera Club c/o Canadian Association for Photographic Art $10,100 1 year

Stratford Minor Baseball Association $50,000 1 year

Stratford-Perth Family YMCA $45,000 3 years

Stratford-Perth Museum Association $43,000 1 year

Swing, Spring and Flip Club $15,000 1 year

Sydenham Conservation Foundation $15,000 1 year

The Bayfield Festival of Song c/o The Aldeburgh 
Connection Concert Society $20,000 2 years

The Bayfield Historical Society $15,000 1 year

The Corporation of the Municipality of Brockton $45,000 6 months

The Paisley and District Kinsmen Club $20,000 1 year

The Township of Bruce Historical Society $15,000 1 year

Town of Saugeen Shores $61,800 1 year

Town of the Blue Mountains $5,000 1 year

Township of Perth East $8,500 1 year

Van Egmond Foundation $38,600 1 year

Victim Services of Huron County $6,800 1 year

Walkerton Golf and Curling Club $53,100 1 year

Zurich Minor Athletic Association $12,700 1 year

Total $2,429,800 

Total Grants 81

Ontario Trillium Foundation Annual Report 2007-200839 Annual Report 2008-2009



Community Grants
Halton-Peel

Organization Name Amount Term

557 Lorne Scots Royal Canadian Army Cadets - Support 
Committee c/o The Army Cadet League of Canada (Ontario) $37,400 2 years

Advocacy Committee for Arts, Culture and Heritage 
Plan c/o Georgetown Choral Society $32,900 1 year

Associated Youth Services of Peel $150,000 2 years

Bereaved Families of Ontario - Halton/Peel $116,800 2 years

Bereaved Families of Ontario Hamilton/Burlington $10,000 1 year

Best Practices in Greening Corporate Grounds c/o Evergreen $219,800 42 months

Big Brothers Big Sisters of Hamilton and Burlington $10,500 1 year

Big Brothers Big Sisters of Peel $375,000 5 years

Brampton Minor Basketball Association $14,800 1 year

Brant Hills Presbyterian Church $60,000 1 year

BSO/BNRC 'Wave of the Future' Collaborative Project 
c/o Brampton Symphony Orchestra (BSO) $105,500 3 years

Burlington Gymnastics Club Inc. $73,400 1 year

Burlington Hoops Basketball Club $20,000 1 year

Burlington Humane Society Inc. $11,000 1 year

Burlington Kolumbus Club $85,600 1 year

Burlington Masters Swim Club Inc. $15,000 1 year

BurlingtonGreen c/o Halton Environmental Network (HEN) $132,100 2 years

Caledon Chamber Concerts $15,900 2 years

Caledon Community Services $375,000 4 years

Caledon Countryside Alliance $225,000 3 years

Canada Odisha Society of Americas (CanOSA) $13,500 1 year

Canadian Community Arts Initiative $49,500 9 months

CanAfric Théâtre CanAfrique $110,000 2 years

Carassauga Multicultural Festival Inc. $223,000 4 years

chamberWORKS! Music Ensemble $108,300 2 years

Church of the Virgin Mary and St. Athanasius $100,000 1 year

Community Diversity Leadership c/o The National 
Movement for Harmony in Canada $225,000 3 years

Community Foundation of Mississauga $175,000 3 years

Community Foundation of Oakville $103,000 2 years

Community Living North Halton $150,000 2 years

Culture Philippines of Ontario $30,500 1 year

DADA (Dad's Against Dirty Air) c/o Halton Environmental Network $70,000 1 year
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Community Grants
Halton-Peel (Continued)

Organization Name Amount Term

Dance/Drama Performance Collaborative c/o West End Studio Theatre $65,900 1 year

Elder Technology Assistance Group (ETAG) $75,000 2 years

Family Justice/Child Advocacy Centre c/o Catholic 
Family Services of Peel Dufferin $55,600 1 year

Family Services of Peel & Catholic Family Services of 
Dufferin-Peel Collaborative c/o Family Services of Peel $211,500 3 years

FarmStart / Ferme en Marche $318,800 3 years

Folklore Ensemble Croatia Mississauga $8,000 1 year

Full Circle Judo Club $42,900 3 years

Georgetown Lawn Bowling Club $12,000 1 year

Grace United Church $150,000 2 years

Halton Centre for Social Innovation (HCSI) c/o 
Halton Environmental Network (HEN) $36,000 6 months

Halton Healthy Community Funding Consortium 
c/o Regional Municipality of Halton $25,000 1 year

Higher Ground Neighbourhood Outreach $50,600 2 years

Home Suite Hope Shared Living Corp $192,000 3 years

Kahaniya - Sisters Sharing Stories and PCHS Collaborative 
c/o Punjabi Community Health Services $57,500 18 months

Kalayaan Cultural Community Centre (KCCC) $141,600 4 years

Limehouse Kiln Restoration Project c/o Limehouse Kiln Society $150,000 1 year

Maple Grove United Church $110,000 1 year

Masterworks of Oakville, Chorus & Orchestra $37,000 2 years

Maximilian Kolbe Foundation $12,400 1 year

Milton Choristers $2,400 1 year

Milton Concert Band (MCB) $15,000 1 year

Mississauga Children's Choir $12,200 1 year

Mississauga Festival Choir $27,300 2 years

Mississauga Independent Film Festival Group $31,500 6 months

Mississauga Mandarin Association $74,700 2 years

Mohawk Park Tennis Club $119,700 1 year

North Halton Power and Sail Squadron c/o 
Kiwanis Club of Georgetown $8,000 1 year

Oakville Chamber Ensemble $55,000 2 years

Oakville Feis Association (OFA) $50,100 1 year
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Community Grants
Halton-Peel

Organization Name Amount Term

Oakville Parent-Child Centre $50,000 6 months

One Voice One Team Youth Leadership Organization $75,000 1 year

Ontario Inter-Cultural Community Services $110,000 2 years

Partners for Youth c/o Rotary Club of Palgrave $73,100 1 year

Peel Children's Centre $225,000 3 years

Peel Music Festival $15,000 1 year

Peel Poverty Action Group c/o Social Planning Council of Peel $75,000 1 year

Peel Region Project c/o Epilepsy Peel Region $53,500 1 year

Peel-Halton-Dufferin Training Board $60,800 3 years

Peer Outreach Support Services and Education (POSSE) Collaborative 
c/o AIDS Committee of Guelph and Wellington County $63,300 3 years

Performing Arts Burlington $197,000 3 years

Polish Canadian Women's Federation $48,000 1 year

Polish-Canadian Vocal Group Inc. $7,000 1 year

Rapport Youth & Family Services $206,900 5 years

Ringette Association of Burlington $14,600 9 months

Royal Canadian Legion - Lt. Algie V.C. Branch 449 - Alton $121,200 1 year

Sandhill Pipe Band $11,900 1 year

Senior Tamils Society of Peel $139,300 2 years

Sierra Club Ontario Chapter c/o Sierra Club of Canada Foundation $48,000 10 months

St. John Ambulance - Brampton Branch 
c/o St. John Council for Ontario $75,000 1 year

St. Leonard's House (Peel) $209,500 3 years

Summit Housing & Outreach Programs $31,500 1 year

Support & Housing - Halton $225,000 3 years

Supportive Housing In Peel $75,000 1 year

Team Futures School of Gymnastics Inc. $58,300 10 months

The Brampton Community All Steel Percussion Concert Band $73,600 2 years

The Oakville and District Humane Society $89,700 1 year

The Riverwood Conservancy $303,600 4 years

The Women's Centre $96,400 2 years

Tora Martial Arts Club $66,200 1 year

Trade Wind Science & Technology Group $25,000 18 months
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Organization Name Amount Term

Trout Unlimited Canada $126,000 2 years

United Achievers Community Services $15,000 1 year

Volunteer Mississauga Brampton Caledon (Volunteer 
MBC) c/o Social Planning Council of Peel $375,000 5 years

Vychodna Slovak Dancers $20,000 1 year

Way To Your Future c/o Goodwill, The Amity Group $147,200 2 years

Windmill Theatre Productions Inc. $12,000 2 years

World of Threads Festival $11,900 1 year

Young Achievers of Halton (YAH) $22,900 1 year

Youth Unlimited Potential (YUP) Project c/o 
Brampton Bramalea Christian Fellowship Inc. $96,300 2 years

Total $9,340,900 

Total Grants 101

Community Grants

Halton-Peel (Continued)
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Community Grants
Hamilton

Organization Name Amount Term

Amity Goodwill Industries $122,100 1 year

Arts Hamilton $26,000 1 year

Bereaved Families of Ontario Hamilton/Burlington $10,000 1 year

Best Buddies-Community Living Hamilton c/o Best Buddies Canada $97,800 2 years

Big Brothers Big Sisters of Hamilton and Burlington $42,000 1 year

Canadian Japanese Cultural Centre of Hamilton $33,000 1 year

Centre de santé communautaire Hamilton/Niagara $50,000 1 year

Christ's Church Cathedral $41,400 2 years

Community Child Abuse Council of Canada $130,700 2 years

Confederation Marine Modellers Club $5,200 1 year

Croatian Village Folklore Ensemble of Holy Cross R.C. Parish $15,000 6 months

Dr. Bob Kemp Hospice Foundation Inc. $50,000 1 year

Dundas Valley School of Art $66,000 6 months

Dundas Valley Skating Rink Trust $50,000 1 year

Environment Hamilton Incorporated $193,200 3 years

Financial Coaching c/o Catholic Family Services of Hamilton $62,600 1 year

Flamborough Fire Basketball Association 
c/o Ontario Basketball Association $3,300 1 year

Glanbrook Home Support Programme Inc. $130,000 2 years

Glanford Curling Club Incorporated $15,000 1 year

Greening Sacred Spaces Hamilton c/o Faith & The Common Good $56,000 2 years

Hamilton All Star Jazz Band Inc. $50,000 1 year

Hamilton Association for Residential and 
Recreational Redevelopment Programs $142,800 2 years

Hamilton Children's Choir $34,000 1 year

Hamilton Council on Aging $100,000 2 years

Hamilton East Kiwanis Boys' and Girls' Club $49,800 1 year

Hamilton Executive Directors' Aboriginal Coalition 
c/o Urban Native Homes Incorporated $150,000 2 years

Hamilton Hornets Rugby Football Club $40,000 1 year

Hamilton Hurricanes Football Club $25,000 1 year

Hamilton Junior Football Club Inc. $6,200 1 year

Hamilton Pride Festival Inc. $51,800 2 years

Hamilton Transway Basketball c/o Ontario Basketball Association $14,000 6 months

Hamilton Victoria Club $15,000 1 year
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Community Grants
Hamilton (Continued)

Organization Name Amount Term

Hamilton-Wentworth Chapter of Native Women Incorporated $75,000 1 year

Hamilton-Wentworth Green Venture $83,000 2 years

Innovations in Early Learning and Child Care in Dundas 
c/o Today's Family - Caring for Your Child $72,300 1 year

L'Age d'Or Notre-dame $9,600 1 year

LGBTQ Community Wellness Centre of Hamilton ('The Well') $57,000 2 years

Metis Women's Circle $147,400 2 years

Micah House $70,900 6 months

Mohawk Minor Hockey Association $8,000 6 months

Niwasa Head Start Preschool $35,300 1 year

North American Spiritual Revival (NASR) $41,200 1 year

Optimist Club of Stoney Creek $3,800 6 months

Polonez Polish Canadian Folk Ensemble of Hamilton $20,000 1 year

STAR of Hamilton-Wentworth $57,900 2 years

Sudanese League of Hamilton $13,000 1 year

The Children's Aid Society of Hamilton-Wentworth $75,000 1 year

The Irish-Canadian Club $15,900 1 year

The Malhar Group Music Circle of Ontario $14,200 1 year

Welcome Inn Community Centre $70,300 1 year

Wellwood Resource Centre of Hamilton $68,500 2 years

Women's Centre of Hamilton $16,500 1 year

YMCA/HHS Healthy Weights Demonstration 
Project c/o YMCA of Hamilton/Burlington $112,700 18 months

Youth Empowerment Community Centre c/o Hamilton Church of God $42,100 1 year

Youth Engagement & Action in Hamilton (YEAH) 
c/o YMCA of Hamilton/Burlington $75,000 1 year

Total $3,062,500

Total Grants 55 
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Community Grants
Muskoka, Nipissing, Parry Sound, Timiskaming

Organization Name Amount Term

2009 Temiskaming International Plowing Match $35,500 1 year

Alternative Transportation $90,100 22 months

Bala Cranberry Festival $20,000 1 year

Bala Curling Club $50,000 1 year

Bonfield & District Lions Club $14,900 1 year

Bonfield Agricultural Society $150,000 1 year

Classic Theatre Cobalt $14,300 1 year

Community Counselling Centre of Nipissing $120,800 2 years

Community Living Parry Sound $40,800 1 year

Corporation of the Municipality of Callander $50,000 1 year

Corporation of the Town of Kirkland Lake $70,000 1 year

Corporation of the Township of Bonfield $45,300 1 year

Corporation of the Township of Brethour $13,800 1 year

Corporation of the Township of Hudson $12,100 1 year

Hudson Lakes Association $20,000 2 years

Huntsville Curling Club $48,300 1 year

Jeunesse en Marche du Timiskaming $37,700 1 year

Mattawa 125 Celebrations c/o Corporation of the Town of Mattawa $75,000 1 year

Municipality of Powassan $63,900 1 year

Muskoka Community Foundation $11,500 1 year

Muskoka Heritage Trust $106,200 2 years

Muskoka/Parry Sound Coordinated Sexual Assault Services $48,700 1 year

New Liskeard Agricultural Society $15,000 1 year

Nipissing First Nation $57,200 1 year

Nipissing Transition House $15,800 1 year

North Bay Theatre and Arts Community Centre (Capitol Centre) $15,000 1 year

Northern Caledonia Pipes and Drums $31,200 1 year

Restoule & District Lions Club $15,000 1 year

Round Lake & Area Local Services Board $7,000 1 year

Royal Canadian Legion Branch 161 - Bracebridge $66,400 1 year

Royal Canadian Legion Branch 227 - Charlton $55,600 1 year

Royal Canadian Legion Branch 599 - West Ferris $11,600 1 year

Ski Friends of the Frost Centre $26,800 1 year
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Community Grants
Muskoka, Nipissing, Parry Sound, Timiskaming (Continued)

Organization Name Amount Term

Temagami First Nation $15,100 6 months

The Almaguin Highlands Council for the Arts $71,100 1 year

The Business Centre Nipissing Parry Sound Inc. $79,500 18 months

The Corporation of the Municipality of Charlton and Dack $45,800 6 months

The Corporation of the Town of Kearney $17,800 1 year

The Corporation of the Township of Seguin $30,000 1 year

The Edge of the Woods Collaborative c/o The 
Cooking Fire Theatre Festival $44,600 6 months

The North Bay Literacy Council $40,300 1 year

Township of Chamberlain $11,900 1 year

Township of Lake of Bays $59,200 1 year

Warriors of Hope Breast Cancer Survivors Dragon Boat Racing Team $4,800 1 year

Wasi Cross Country Ski Club Inc. $46,800 1 year

White Water Gallery $31,200 14 months

Total $1,953,600

Total Grants 46 
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Community Grants
Niagara

Organization Name Amount Term

Accessible Niagara Project - Ontario March of Dimes 
Niagara Chapter c/o Ontario March of Dimes $31,000 2 years

Auberge Richelieu $20,500 6 months

Beamsville Senior Citizens' Club $9,000 1 year

Big Brothers Big Sisters of St. Catharines - Thorold & District $85,600 3 years

Brain Injury Services of Hamilton, Haldimand-Norfolk, Niagara (BISH) $56,500 9 months

Canadian Red Cross Niagara Region c/o 
Canadian Red Cross Ontario Zone $64,300 2 years

Celebrate Old Downtown Community Corp. $70,000 9 months

Chorus Niagara $15,000 1 year

Club Social Inc. $15,000 6 months

Club Social Inc. $36,400 1 year

Community Care of West Niagara $89,100 30 months

Community Kids Quest c/o Fort Erie Multicultural Centre $52,500 3 years

Community Living - Fort Erie $15,000 1 year

Community Outreach Program Erie $5,000 1 year

Corporation of the Town of Pelham $37,200 1 year

Downtown Alliance for the Performing Arts 
(DAPA), St. Catharines c/o Carousel Players $10,000 6 months

Goodwill Industries Niagara $150,000 3 years

Grimsby Affordable Housing Partnership $93,200 2 years

Habitat for Humanity Niagara $97,200 2 years

Head Injury Association of Fort Erie $2,900 6 months

Heartland Forest Nature Experience $38,500 1 year

Holy Trinity Anglican Church - Welland $75,000 6 months

In the Orchard Programming for the Arts $16,000 1 year

Italo Canadian Club of Fort Erie Inc. $50,000 9 months

Les Social Silver Jammer's a/s Club Social Inc. $5,000 1 year

Mainstream: An Unsheltered Workshop $57,500 2 years

Neto Hatinakwe Onkwehowe Native Arts $65,300 18 months

Niagara Community Foundation $81,100 2 years

Niagara Concerts $15,000 6 months

Niagara Eco-Inclusion Initiative c/o Land Care Niagara $106,000 2 years
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Community Grants
Niagara (Continued)

Organization Name Amount Term

Niagara Environmental Task Force (NEST) Collaboration 
c/o Friends of Fort Erie's Creeks (FOFEC) $20,500 1 year

Niagara Falls Art Gallery - The Passion of 
Christ William Kurelek Art Collection $115,600 3 years

Niagara Falls Lions Club $75,000 1 year

Niagara Peninsula Children's Centre $27,200 1 year

Niagara Pride Support Services $73,000 1 year

Niagara Regional Literacy Council $41,400 2 years

Niagara Regional Police Pipes and Drums Inc $15,000 9 months

Niagara River Restoration Council (NRC) $97,400 2 years

Port Colborne Community Association for Resource Extension $15,000 1 year

PoultryFest Niagara $20,000 2 years

Project Green Program c/o Niagara Peninsula 
Community Resource Centre $140,000 2 years

Red Roof Retreat $106,800 2 years

Royal Canadian Legion Branch 613 - Fonthill $44,200 9 months

SOFIFRAN (Solidarité des femmes immigrantes 
francophones du Niagara) $160,000 3 years

St. Barnabas Anglican Church $15,000 6 months

St. Catharines Curling Club $25,200 9 months

Talking About Mental Illness (TAMI) c/o 
Canadian Mental Health Association $111,900 3 years

The Adult Literacy Council of Greater Fort Erie $66,900 30 months

The Beachcombers Senior Citizen Association $23,600 1 year

The Optimist Club of Grantham, St. Catharines, Ontario $68,700 6 months

The Port Colborne Operatic Society $15,000 1 year

The Port Colborne Social and Recreation Centre for Senior Citizens $9,500 1 year

The Royal Canadian Legion Branch 479 - Niagara Falls $66,700 1 year

The School of Restoration Arts at Willowbank $150,000 2 years

Thorold Community Activities Group $48,200 1 year

Thorold Community Theatre $29,600 9 months

Waking the Sleeping Dragon Initiative c/o Breast 
Cancer Research & Education Fund $20,000 1 year

Welland Historical Museum $30,000 2 years

Welland International Flatwater Centre Collaborative 
c/o Welland Recreational Canal Corporation $77,100 2 years
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Community Grants
Niagara

Organization Name Amount Term

Welland Lions Club $31,600 9 months

Winter Festival of Lights $64,800 2 years

YWCA of St. Catharines $25,000 1 year

Total $3,294,700

Total Grants 62 
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Community Grants
Northwestern

Organization Name Amount Term

Alpine Ski Team Lake Superior Ski Division Inc. $10,400 1 year

Alzheimer Society of Kenora/Rainy River Districts $77,000 2 years

Association des Francophones du Nord-Ouest de l'Ontario $12,200 1 year

Centre des Femmes Francophones du Nord-Ouest de l'Ontario $50,000 1 year

Corporation of the City of Kenora- Parks Department $14,700 1 year

Corporation of the Town of Rainy River $37,200 1 year

Corporation of the Township of Emo $35,000 1 year

Corporation of the Township of Nipigon $29,300 1 year

Corporation of the Township of Terrace Bay $10,000 1 year

Dryden Ukrainian Literary Society $6,500 1 year

Dryden Youth Soccer Club $55,000 1 year

EcoSuperior Environmental Programs $125,000 2 years

Finlandia Club of Port Arthur $125,000 1 year

Fort Frances Lions Club $15,000 1 year

Fort William Curling and Athletic Club $100,000 1 year

Fort William Figure Skating Club $11,000 6 months

Geraldton Nordic Ski Club $14,100 1 year

Ice Plant Replacement Project c/o Corporation 
of the Township of Nipigon $110,000 1 year

Kakabeka Falls Community Curling and Athletic Club $75,000 1 year

Kaministiquia Community Centre Association $15,000 1 year

Le centre d'alphabétisation Alpha Thunder Bay $11,800 1 year

Le Club Canadien Français de Thunder Bay CCF Incorporée $10,200 1 year

Nigigoonsiminikaaning First Nation $15,000 1 year

Northern Trails Ski Club Inc. $7,500 8 months

Northwestern Independent Living Services Inc. $97,000 2 years

Northwestern Ontario HD Video Conference Network for 
People With Disabilities c/o Handicapped Action Group Inc. $50,000 1 year

Northwestern Ontario Sports Hall of Fame $13,800 1 year

Our Kids Count of Thunder Bay Inc. $15,000 1 year

Pass Lake Sports and Recreation Association $12,500 1 year

Pelimanni Orchestra Inc. $13,800 1 year

Port Arthur Curling & Athletic Club $72,000 1 year

Ontario Trillium Foundation Annual Report 2007-200851 Annual Report 2008-2009



Community Grants
Northwestern

Organization Name Amount Term

Rainy Lake Ringers Handbell Choir c/o Church 
of St. John the Baptist-Fort Frances $12,000 1 year

Red Lake District Adult Learning Centre $72,400 1 year

Royal Canadian Legion Branch 102 - Red Lake $75,000 1 year

Sandy Lake Community Development Services Inc. $15,000 8 months

Shebandowan Lake Community Club $36,000 1 year

The Kidney Foundation of Canada - Northern Superior 
Chapter c/o The Kidney Foundation of Canada $5,000 1 year

Thunder Bay Agricultural & Equestrian Corporation $50,000 1 year

Thunder Bay Amateur Hockey Association $8,500 1 year

Thunder Bay International Baseball Association Inc $95,000 2 years

Thunder Bay Military Museum and Historical Society $15,000 1 year

Thunder Bay Symphony Orchestra Association $15,000 1 year

Valley Adult Learning Association $31,700 2 years

Wasaya WeeCheeWayWin Incorporation $45,000 1 year

Total $1,721,600

Total Grants 44 
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Community Grants
Quinte, Kingston, Rideau

Organization Name Amount Term

Alma Mater Society Of Queen's University Incorporated $3,600 1 year

Almonte Curling Club $10,300 1 year

Amherst Island Radio Broadcasting Inc. $25,000 1 year

Art Gallery of Bancroft $15,000 1 year

Bancroft Curling Club $19,600 1 year

Bay of Quinte Yacht Club Sailing School $15,000 1 year

Belleville Lawn Bowling Club c/o Ontario Lawn Bowls Association $15,000 1 year

Belleville Youth Swim Team $15,000 1 year

Bereaved Families of Ontario - Kingston Region $90,000 3 years

Brockville Community Foundation $45,500 2 years

Brockville Lawn Bowling Club c/o Ontario Lawn Bowls Association $13,500 1 year

Canadian Mental Health Association Kingston Branch $51,900 2 years

Cantabile Choirs of Kingston $17,500 1 year

Carleton Place & District Youth Centre $60,000 2 years

Carleton Place Curling Club $14,000 1 year

Centre Hastings People Helping People $15,000 1 year

Children's Nursery Centre $15,000 1 year

Community Living Prince Edward $18,400 1 year

Corporation of the Municipality of Tweed $7,500 1 year

Corporation of the Municipality of Tweed $150,000 1 year

Corporation of the Town of Prescott $14,200 1 year

Corporation of the Township of Front of Yonge $15,000 1 year

Corporation of the Township of Wollaston $14,700 1 year

Corporation of the Township of Wollaston $75,000 1 year

Dreams in Motion Performing and Fine Arts School $10,000 1 year

Elgin and Area Heritage Society $25,000 1 year

Families First c/o Plainfield Community Homes $96,000 2 years

Greater Kingston Girls Hockey Association $15,000 1 year

H'art School of Smiles Inc. $23,400 2 years

Hospice North Hastings $56,000 1 year

Hospice Prince Edward $64,200 1 year

John Howard Society of Kingston and District $9,500 1 year

K L Soccer Fields c/o Greater Kingston Senior Soccer Association $60,000 8 months

Kingston Artists' Association Inc. $14,800 1 year
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Community Grants
Quinte, Kingston, Rideau

Organization Name Amount Term

Kingston Grenadiers Drum and Bugle Corps $15,000 1 year

Kingston Historical Society $5,000 3 months

Kingston Home Base Non-Profit Housing Inc. $100,300 2 years

Kingston Literacy $40,000 1 year

Kingston Partners in Mission Food Bank $13,000 1 year

Kingston Regional Association of the Deaf $10,000 1 year

Kingston Tennis Club $15,000 1 year

Kingston United Soccer Club $69,100 2 years

Kinsmen Club of Gananoque Inc. $91,600 1 year

Lanark County Tourism and Museums Associations 
c/o Lanark County Tourism Association $44,600 1 year

Lennox Community Theatre Inc. $64,000 1 year

Loving Spoonful c/o Partners in Mission Food Bank $66,300 2 years

Madoc C.O.P.E. Corporation $49,000 1 year

Marine Museum of the Great Lakes at Kingston $74,300 3 years

MERA- McDonald's Corner's/Elphin Recreation and Arts $14,500 1 year

Middleville Agricultural Society $73,000 1 year

Mississippi Valley Textile Museum $15,000 1 year

Mississippi/Tay CrimeStoppers $9,000 1 year

Mohawks of the Bay of Quinte $15,000 1 year

Montague and District Seniors Forget-Me-Not Club #837 $52,500 1 year

Municipality of Marmora & Lake $50,000 1 year

Municipality of North Grenville $39,900 1 year

Nova Children's Centre $15,000 1 year

Ontario Senior Games Association $63,700 1 year

Perth and District Agricultural Society $15,000 1 year

Perth Curling Club $66,100 3 months

Prince Edward County Youth Park Inc. $125,000 1 year

Prince Edward Curling Club $15,000 1 year

Puppets Up! International Puppet Festival $14,700 1 year

Puppets Up! International Puppet Festival $24,000 2 years

Quinte Sail Ability $3,800 1 year

Quinte Sail Ability $36,300 1 year

Quinte Vocational Support Services $14,200 1 year
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Community Grants
Quinte, Kingston, Rideau (Continued)

Organization Name Amount Term

Revved Up c/o Canadian Paraplegic Association Ontario $100,000 3 years

Rideau Volunteers c/o Rideau Environmental Action League $82,300 2 years

Rideau Waterway Land Trust Foundation $67,600 3 years

Royal Canadian Legion Branch 181 - Bancroft $15,000 1 year

Royal Canadian Legion Branch 240 - Almonte $25,000 1 year

Royal Canadian Legion Branch 280 - Deseronto $15,000 1 year

Royal Canadian Legion Branch 425 - Sharbot $63,800 1 year

Royal Canadian Legion Branch 623 - Bath $56,100 1 year

Royal Canadian Legion Branch 92 - Gananoque $74,100 1 year

Royal Canadian Legion Branch 96 - Brockville $5,200 1 year

Smiths Falls Gordon Pipe Band $34,500 1 year

Smiths Falls Gym Stars Gymnastics Club $25,000 1 year

Sydenham Lake Canoe Club $15,000 1 year

Tay Valley Ski and Fitness Club $10,200 1 year

The Canadian Hearing Society, Kingston 
c/o The Canadian Hearing Society $56,400 1 year

The Cathedral Church of St. George $70,000 1 year

The Corporation of the Village of Merrickville-Wolford $62,000 1 year

The Corporation of the Village of Merrickville-Wolford $37,200 1 year

The Delta Mill Society $155,500 20 months

The Switch Yard $49,100 1 year

Thousand Islands Playhouse $40,000 8 months

Touch A Rainbow Riding for Disabled $20,000 1 year

Town of Bancroft $15,000 1 year

Township of Addington Highlands $81,900 1 year

Township of Athens $14,900 1 year

Township of Athens $3,600 1 year

Township of Rideau Lakes $14,100 1 year

Township of Stirling-Rawdon $75,000 1 year

Trenton Columbus Club Incorporated $15,000 1 year

West Lake Catamaran Sailing School Inc. $15,000 1 year

YMCA of Belleville and Quinte $70,400 1 year

Young Imaginations - A Creative Arts Centre $26,800 1 year

Total $3,839,200

Total Grants 99 
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Community Grants
Simcoe-York

Organization Name Amount Term

Affordable Housing Coordination Project c/o Georgian 
Triangle Residential Resource Centre $141,500 3 years

Amyotrophic Lateral Sclerosis Society of Ontario $141,900 2 years

Arts Society King $171,600 3 years

Artslink York Region $25,000 6 months

Association des francophones de la région de York Inc. $25,000 1 year

Aurora Historical Society $25,000 6 months

Aurora Youth Soccer Club Inc. $170,000 3 years

Autism Ontario - Simcoe County Chapter c/o Autism Ontario $30,000 2 years

Autism Ontario - York Region Chapter c/o Autism Ontario $206,500 3 years

Barrie Art Club, Inc. $7,400 6 months

Barrie Folk Society Inc. $30,400 3 years

Barrie Music Festival Association Inc. $14,900 1 year

Between Friends, Aboriginal Clothing and Book 
Drive c/o Kids Come First Child Care Services $102,700 2 years

Big Brothers Big Sisters of the Georgian Triangle $151,500 3 years

Bob Rumball Home for the Deaf $225,000 3 years

Boys and Girls Clubs of North Simcoe $145,000 3 years

Canadian Museum of Hindu Civilization $15,000 1 year

Canadian Spinal Research Organization $15,000 1 year

Canadians Multicultural Links Association $44,800 3 years

City of Vaughan Baseball Association $150,000 3 years

Club Uruguay $15,000 6 months

Community Foundation of Orillia & Area $46,000 1 year

CONTACT and Nottawasaga Futures c/o South 
Simcoe Community Information Centre $80,600 1 year

David Busby Street Centre $190,000 3 years

DeafBlind Ontario Services $108,200 18 months

Elder Connections and Tzivos Hashem 
Canada Inc. c/o Elder Connections $205,000 3 years

Elizabeth Fry Society of Simcoe County $225,000 3 years

Elmvale Curling Club $55,000 1 year

Federation of Chinese Canadians in Markham $248,000 4 years

Filipino Canadian Association of Vaughan $37,000 3 years

Fuerza Latina Community Services $15,000 1 year

Georgian Bay Native Friendship Centre Inc. $170,000 3 years
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Community Grants
Simcoe-York (Continued)

Organization Name Amount Term

Georgian Bay Native Womens Association $139,000 3 years

Georgian Triangle Tourist Association and Convention Bureau $75,000 1 year

Georgina Military Museum $20,500 6 months

Georgina Trades Trading Inc. $302,800 3 years

Gibson Cultural Centre Corporation $35,000 1 year

Holland Landing Literacy Garden Project c/o 
Friends of the East Gwillimbury Library $75,000 9 months

Horses At Heart Therapeutic Equestrian Adventures Inc. $120,000 3 years

Hospice Simcoe $135,600 2 years

Humber River Shakespeare $15,000 6 months

Huronia Foundation for the Arts $60,000 3 years

Huronia Players Theatre Group Inc. $79,000 1 year

Irish Canadian Rugby Club $15,000 1 year

Ja'fari Islamic Housing Corporation - Crescent Village 
Trust c/o Ja'fari Islamic Housing Corporation $81,000 1 year

Kids for Turtles Environmental Education $70,000 2 years

Literacy Council of South Simcoe $15,000 1 year

Literacy Council York-Simcoe $218,200 3 years

Losing Our Parents $27,800 1 year

MacLaren Art Centre $15,000 1 year

Markham Aquatic Club $70,300 1 year

Markham Centennial Bocce Club $60,100 1 year

Markham Concert Band $7,200 1 year

Markham District Veterans Association Incorporated $41,000 6 months

Markham Federation of Filipino Canadians $122,500 1 year

Markham Lions History c/o Markham Lions Club $71,700 1 year

Midland Area Reading Council $128,300 2 years

Midland Small Set Co-operative Nursery School $6,500 6 months

Ontario Bocce Association $20,000 6 months

Opera York $186,200 4 years

Orillia and District Arts Council $112,500 3 years

Orillia Area Community Development Corporation $200,000 4 years

Oro Station Community Hall Corporation $90,000 1 year
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Community Grants
Simcoe-York

Organization Name Amount Term

Oro-Medonte Minor Sports Association c/o  
Oro-Medonte Minor Hockey Association $94,200 2 years

Parkinson Society Canada, Central and Northern 
Ontario Region c/o Parkinson Society Canada $159,700 3 years

Quest Gallery and Huronia School of Visual Arts $200,000 4 years

Richmond Hill Disabled Program/Service Feasibility Study 
c/o Richmond Hill Mobility Accessibility Foundation $25,000 6 months

Royal Canadian Air Cadets - 94 Newmarket Squadron $14,900 1 year

Royal Canadian Legion Branch 414 - Woodbridge $87,500 1 year

Simcoe County Communities Foundation Administrative 
Hub c/o Huronia Communities Foundation - La 
fondation communautaire de la Huronie

$22,900 6 months

Simcoe County Farm Fresh Marketing Association $75,000 2 years

South Simcoe Streams Network c/o Nottawasaga 
Community Economic Development Corporation $157,100 3 years

Special Olympics Ontario - Collingwood Alpine 
Ski Teams c/o National Ski Academy $40,000 1 year

The Scottish Rite Learning Centres for Children - Barrie 
c/o The Scottish Rite Charitable Foundation of Canada $89,500 1 year

The Sharing Place Orillia Incorporated $150,500 3 years

The Soccer Hall of Fame and Museum (Ontario) Digitization 
Project c/o The Soccer Hall of Fame and Museum (Ontario) $225,000 3 years

Vedic Cultural Centre $150,000 1 year

Wasaga Beach Woodworkers Club $9,100 5 years

Whitchurch-Stouffville Strawberry Festival $155,000 3 years

Windfall Ecology Centre $100,000 2 years

York Centre for Children, Youth & Families $220,300 3 years

York North Family Resource Programmes $52,000 1 year

York Region Abuse Program $35,000 1 year

Zareinu Educational Centre of Metropolitan Toronto $276,500 5 years

Total $8,187,400

Total Grants 84 
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Community Grants
Thames Valley

Organization Name Amount Term

2009 Canadian Men's Senior Fastball Championships 
c/o The Centennial Sports Club of St. Thomas Inc. $54,000 1 year

27 (City of London) Squadron Air Cadet Sponsoring Committee $7,000 1 year

Across Languages Translation and Interpretation Service $15,000 1 year

Active Elgin c/o Elgin St. Thomas Health Unit $30,800 1 year

Alzheimer Society of Oxford $112,000 3 years

ARE-U-READY c/o YMCA of London $64,000 2 years

Association canadienne-française de l'Ontario, London-Sarnia $105,500 2 years

Ausable Community Centre $108,100 3 years

Belmont Lions Club $18,000 3 years

Best Buddies-Community Living London c/o Best Buddies Canada $72,000 2 years

Brassroots $14,400 1 year

Canadian Diabetes Association $40,000 1 year

Canadian Embroiderers' Guild, London $3,300 1 year

Childreach Centre $63,000 1 year

Connecting People with Nature through Bird 
Conservation c/o Bird Studies Canada $61,200 1 year

Cultural Advisory Roundtable c/o The Arts & Cookery Bank $13,700 1 year

Elgin International Club $14,300 1 year

Encore the Concert Band $10,400 1 year

Etonia United Church c/o Princeton Pastoral Charge $4,800 1 year

Forest City Flyers Inc. $10,000 1 year

Forest City Gymnastics Club $15,000 1 year

Gail Graham Eco Park c/o Boys' and Girls' Club of London $60,400 18 months

Hickson and District Lions Club $74,700 1 year

Holy Trinity Greek Orthodox Community of London & Vicinity $25,000 3 months

Home County Folk League $50,000 2 years

Hutton House Association for Adults with Disabilities $114,000 2 years

Imadon Street Painting Performance Group $40,000 1 year

Ingersoll Services for Seniors $4,800 1 year

Ingersoll Soccer Club $15,000 1 year

Ingersoll Speed Sharks c/o Kiwanis Club of Ingersoll Charitable Trust $10,000 3 months

Karen Schuessler Singers $24,000 6 months

Kee-mo-kee Campsite of the United Church of Canada $37,200 1 year
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Community Grants
Thames Valley

Organization Name Amount Term

Lambeth Lawn Bowling Club $26,400 6 months

Lights On c/o Optimist Club of Aylmer $60,000 1 year

London Blizzard Sledge Hockey Club c/o 
Ontario Sledge Hockey Association $8,400 1 year

London Chapter, Sweet Adelines, Inc. $13,000 1 year

London Community Resource Centre $40,000 1 year

London Curling Club $50,000 1 year

London Heritage Council $70,000 1 year

London Jewish Community Village $66,000 1 year

London Ontario Pipe Band $31,600 1 year

London Potters Guild $113,500 1 year

London Rowing Club $22,000 1 year

London Titans c/o Ontario Basketball Association $15,000 1 year

Lucan Area Heritage & Donnelly Museum Project 
c/o Township of Lucan Biddulph $90,000 3 years

Military Family Resource Centre (London) $30,000 3 months

Mnaasged Child and Family Services $40,000 1 year

Municipality of Middlesex Centre $11,800 1 year

Municipality of Strathroy-Caradoc $15,000 1 year

North America Railway Hall of Fame $150,000 1 year

North Dorchester Agricultural Society $75,000 1 year

Oneida First Nations - First Link Program c/o 
Alzheimer Society of London and Middlesex $118,400 3 years

Oneida Nation of the Thames $13,600 1 year

Ontario Students Against Impaired Driving $37,300 2 years

Optimist Club of Oakridge Acres Inc. $100,000 1 year

Orchestra London Canada Inc. $100,000 2 years

Oxford Children's Water Festival c/o Upper 
Thames River Conservation Authority $43,500 6 months

Pearce Williams United Church Christian Centre $40,000 1 year

Plattsville Curling Club $15,000 1 year

Polish Canadian Club (London) $75,000 1 year

Project Candy c/o Children's Aid Society of London & Middlesex $30,000 1 year

ReForest London $25,000 1 year
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Community Grants
Thames Valley (Continued)

Organization Name Amount Term

Rotary Club of Aylmer Charitable Trust $10,000 1 year

Royal Canadian Legion Branch 190 - Norwich $25,000 6 months

Royal Canadian Legion Branch 510 - Melbourne $14,300 1 year

Royal Canadian Legion Branch 55 - Woodstock $80,000 3 months

Seniors Community Association c/o Boys' & Girls' Club of London $187,300 3 years

Sound Sense c/o The Hearing Foundation of Canada $29,900 1 year

Sparta and District Historical Society $6,000 1 year

Springwater Catfish Collaborative c/o The Friends of Springwater $26,000 10 months

St. John Ambulance, London Branch c/o St. John Council for Ontario $37,000 1 year

St. John's Anglican Church - Thamesford $7,400 1 year

St. Sava Serbian Eastern Orthodox Church $43,500 1 year

St. Thomas and District Minor Baseball Association $22,000 1 year

St. Thomas Seniors' Centre $9,700 1 year

St. Thomas-Elgin Public Art Centre $5,000 1 year

Taking Action on Community Matters c/o  
Elgin-St. Thomas United Way Services $51,600 18 months

Tavistock and District Rod & Gun Club $15,000 1 year

Terry Fox Memorial Track Operating Committee 
Project c/o Oxford Athletic Club $90,000 1 year

Thames Talbot Land Trust $106,500 2 years

The Arts & Cookery Bank....a community heritage centre $45,800 1 year

The Canadian Latin American Association of London $60,000 1 year

The Canadian Medical Hall of Fame $15,000 1 year

The Optimist Club of Komoka-Kilworth $35,000 1 year

The Stork Club Big Band Museum & Hall of Fame $25,000 1 year

The Tillsonburg & District Historical Society $14,000 1 year

The Woodstock Camera Club c/o Canadian 
Association of Photographic Art $15,000 1 year

Tillsonburg Senior Centre $15,000 1 year

Town of Ingersoll $100,000 1 year

Township of Norwich $90,000 1 year

Union Community Centre $30,000 1 year

Union Culturelle des Franco-Ontariennes (UFCO), Place du Partage, 
Place Concorde, Centre Communautaire de Chatham-Kent Girouette 
a/s Carrefour des Femmes du Sud-Ouest de L'Ontario (CFSOO)

$25,600 1 year
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Community Grants
Thames Valley

Organization Name Amount Term

Women's Athletic Alumnae Conference c/o London Sports Council $7,000 9 months

Women's Employment Resource Centre $133,000 3 years

Zorra Skating Club $8,400 1 year

Total $4,202,100

Total Grants 95 
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Community Grants
Toronto

Organization Name Amount Term

Accès arts Canada a/s Théâtre français de Toronto $25,000 8 months

Alzheimer Society of Toronto $150,000 8 months

API Run Jump Throw Inc. $13,500 6 months

Art on the Move Group c/o Arts Etobicoke $206,000 3 years

Arts Etobicoke $86,100 1 year

Aspergers Society of Ontario $9,800 4 months

Association Marocaine de Toronto $63,600 2 years

Association of Spanish Speaking Seniors of the GTA $75,000 18 months

Beaches Jazz Festival Society $250,000 42 months

Bernard Betel Centre for Creative Living $47,200 2 years

Big Day Out Collaborative c/o World Literacy of Canada $222,600 3 years

B'nai B'rith Youth Organization (Lake Ontario Region) $73,500 2 years

Braeburn Neighbourhood Place & Boys and Girls Club $200,000 3 years

C.S.A.C. Creative Spirit Art Centre $64,000 2 years

Call-A-Service Inc. $150,000 2 years

Canadian Children's Opera Chorus $9,000 6 months

Canadian Filmmakers' Distribution Centre $125,000 1 year

Canadian Lesbian and Gay Archives $150,000 6 months

Canadian Music Centre $127,500 1 year

Canadian Tamil Youth Development Centre $15,000 1 year

Canadian Tibetan Association of Ontario c/o 
Tibetan Canadian Cultural Centre (TCCC) $150,000 1 year

Centre for Aboriginal Media (Ontario) $11,400 6 months

Centre for Independent Living in Toronto (CILT) Inc. $150,000 3 months

CHRY Belka Media Literacy Project c/o CHRY 
Community Radio Incorporated $75,000 1 year

Clay and Paper Theatre $225,000 3 years

Cliffcrest Community Centre $375,000 3 years

Coleman Lemieux & Compagnie $150,000 8 months

Common Thread: Community Chorus of Toronto $67,500 3 years

Community Association for Riding for the Disabled $137,500 1 year

Community Social Planning Council of Toronto $375,000 5 years

Coopérative radiophonique de Toronto $125,000 2 years

Crescent Town Bangladeshi Youth Initiative 
c/o Thorncliffe Neighbourhood Office $220,500 3 years
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Community Grants
Toronto

Organization Name Amount Term

Crescent Town Youth Support Network c/o Family Service Toronto $225,000 3 years

Crow's Theatre $90,900 2 years

Curtain Call Players $13,000 1 year

Descant Arts and Letters Foundation $225,000 3 years

Design Exchange $9,600 1 year

Dorset Park Youth Engagement Collaborative Project 
c/o Agincourt Community Services Association $225,000 3 years

Dusk Dances $289,800 4 years

Écoles en santé région de Toronto a/s Centre francophone de Toronto $68,000 2 years

Emerging Arts Professional Network $55,000 2 years

Esmeralda Enrique Spanish Dance Theatre $4,900 1 year

Evergreen $223,400 3 years

Expect Theatre Inc. $225,000 3 years

FCJ Refugee Centre $112,700 1 year

Focus Young Adult Addiction Service $18,100 1 year

fu-Gen Asian Canadian Theatre Company $70,000 2 years

Future Possibilities for Kids $150,000 3 years

Gord Summers Memorial Hockey League Lions 
Collaborative c/o Lions Club of Toronto Central $57,500 1 year

Green Thumbs Growing Kids $149,900 2 years

Groupe artisanal féminin francophone de l'Ontario $97,500 2 years

GTA Diving Corporation $15,000 1 year

Humbercrest United Church $100,000 6 months

IMPACT - Indian Martial & Performance Art Collective of Toronto $125,300 2 years

Jane Finch Community and Family Centre $225,000 3 years

Jessie's Centre Non-Profit Homes c/o June 
Callwood Centre for Women and Families $150,000 1 year

John Howard Society of Toronto $220,500 3 years

Kapisanan Philippine Centre $90,000 2 years

Kids Up Front Foundation (Toronto) $105,000 3 years

KidSport Toronto c/o Sport Alliance of Ontario $265,000 4 years

La Toile des Carrières / The Career Net $22,800 9 months

Lakeshore Area Multi-Services Project Inc. $223,800 3 years

Latvian Canadian Cultural Centre $25,000 1 year

LGBT Giving Network c/o Community One Foundation $126,500 2 years
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Community Grants
Toronto (Continued)

Organization Name Amount Term

Liaison of Independent Filmmakers of Toronto $94,000 6 months

Malaysian Sports and Cultural Association $13,400 1 year

Mammalian Diving Reflex Theatre Group $32,400 3 months

Management Advisory Service of Ontario $36,000 3 years

Mayworks Festival of Working People and the Arts $36,600 1 year

Mercer Union, A Centre for Contemporary Visual Art $148,000 6 months

Mid-Toronto Community Services Inc. $105,400 1 year

Miziwe Biik Aboriginal Employment and Training $50,000 6 months

Monaco Place c/o Davenport Perth Neighbourhood Centre $130,500 2 years

Montage Support Services $150,000 1 year

Motion Basketball Association $7,200 6 months

Music Africa Incorporated $25,000 3 months

Nathaniel Dett Chorale $280,500 3 years

Native Child and Family Services of Toronto $150,000 6 months

Neighbourhood Link/Senior Link $222,700 3 years

Nellie's $94,700 1 year

Nightwood Theatre $40,000 2 years

North York Judo Club $14,300 3 months

Ontario ALS Parkinson Volunteer Program Partnership 
c/o Amyotrophic Lateral Sclerosis Society of Ontario $149,900 2 years

Oolagen Community Services $26,700 1 year

PH Painting c/o Houselink Community Homes $202,700 4 years

Psychology Foundation of Canada $225,000 3 years

Putting Our Best Foot Forward Collaborative c/o FoodShare Toronto $286,200 3 years

Regent Park School of Music $18,200 3 months

Salon du livre de Toronto $85,000 3 years

Scarborough Access Centre Working Group 
c/o Tides Canada Initiatives $75,000 1 year

Scarborough Village Youth Service Provider's Network c/o YouthLink $220,700 3 years

Seeds of Hope Foundation $150,000 1 year

Serve Canada Youth Service Organization $85,500 1 year

SKETCH $75,000 6 months

Skills for Change of Metro Toronto $42,800 3 months

South Asian Legal Clinic of Ontario (SALCO) $62,800 1 year

South Riverdale Community Health Centre $222,000 3 years
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Community Grants
Toronto

Organization Name Amount Term

St. Clair West Services for Seniors $150,000 1 year

St. Michael's Homes $67,500 1 year

St. Stephen's Community House $150,000 1 year

Stop Community Food Centre $238,100 4 years

Street Soccer Canada $72,100 1 year

Subtle Technologies $98,000 2 years

The Esprit Orchestra $225,000 3 years

The Gatehouse Child Abuse Investigation and Support Site $50,000 1 year

The Parkdale Village Arts Collective Inc. $25,000 1 year

The Storytellers School of Toronto $12,000 1 year

The Toronto Consort $64,500 2 years

Théâtre français de Toronto $150,000 4 months

Theatre Passe Muraille $12,400 6 months

Theatre Rusticle $7,500 1 year

Toronto Botanical Garden $139,900 2 years

Toronto Children's Chorus $116,700 2 years

Toronto City Roots Festival Association $25,000 1 year

Toronto Community Employment Services $8,200 1 year

Toronto Dance Theatre $14,700 6 months

Toronto Eagles Soccer Club Inc. $67,000 3 years

Toronto Environmental Alliance $31,800 9 months

Toronto Fashion Incubator $150,000 1 year

Toronto Green Neighbours Collaboration c/o 
Conservation Council of Ontario $28,600 18 months

Toronto Lords Community Association $75,000 5 years

Toronto Mendelssohn Choir $14,200 6 months

Toronto Orienteering Club (TOC) c/o Ontario Orienteering Association $20,800 7 months

Toronto Signals Band $15,000 6 months

Toronto Sports Council $245,000 5 years

Toronto Welsh Male Voice Choir $6,800 1 year

Toronto Wildlife Centre $216,700 3 years

Toronto Youth Wind Orchestra $66,000 1 year

Transition House - Toronto $14,700 3 months

Ward's Island Recreation Association (WIRA) $15,000 6 months
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Community Grants
Toronto (Continued)

Organization Name Amount Term

Willowdale United Church $38,800 3 months

WoodGreen Community Services $85,000 1 year

Working Skills Centre $145,400 6 months

Workman Arts Project of Ontario $190,000 3 years

York Community Services Centre $84,800 6 months

York Lions Steel Band $14,000 1 year

YOU Dance c/o National Ballet of Canada $75,000 7 months

Young Diplomats Ethiopian Youth Development Group $150,000 2 years

Youth at Risk c/o Ontario Australian Football League $151,200 3 years

YWCA Toronto $75,600 1 year

Total $15,290,100

Total Grants 140 
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Community Grants
Waterloo, Wellington, Dufferin

Organization Name Amount Term

21 Highland Fusiliers Royal Canadian Army Cadet Corps 
c/o The Army Cadet League of Canada (Ontario) $13,900 1 year

AIDS Committee of Guelph and Wellington County $155,400 3 years

Alternatives Journal $31,400 2 years

Big Brothers and Big Sisters of Dufferin and District $75,600 2 years

Cambridge and North Dumfries Community Foundation $25,600 6 months

Cambridge Community Orchestra $33,900 2 years

Cambridge Kiwanis Boys' Choir Association $14,900 1 year

Cambridge Neighbourhood Profiles c/o Social Planning 
Council of Cambridge and North Dumfries $60,100 1 year

Cambridge Sculpture Garden $5,000 1 year

Canadian Organic Growers - Perth Waterloo Wellington 
Chapter c/o Canadian Organic Growers Inc. $106,500 2 years

CHOICES Youth Shelter $93,000 2 years

Christopher Champlain Community Centre $6,100 1 year

Civics Research Co-operative $47,700 1 year

Community Living Dufferin $25,000 1 year

Community Resource Centre of North and Centre Wellington $7,600 1 year

Corporation of the Town of Minto $15,000 1 year

Corporation of the Township of East Luther Grand Valley $25,000 6 months

Corporation of the Township of Mapleton $100,000 1 year

Ed Video Media Arts Centre $12,900 1 year

Eden Mills Jackrabbit Ski Club c/o Cross Country Ontario $15,000 1 year

Elmira Lawn Bowling Club c/o Ontario Lawn Bowls Association $12,800 1 year

Elora Centre for Environmental Excellence $62,600 1 year

Elora Centre for the Arts $70,000 1 year

Fergus Tennis Club $48,000 3 months

Focus for Ethnic Women, Waterloo Region Inc. $185,000 4 years

Galt Curling Club $74,300 1 year

Grand River CarShare $40,000 1 year

Greening Sacred Spaces - Waterloo, Wellington, 
Dufferin c/o Faith & The Common Good $108,000 4 years

Greenlands Collaborative c/o Elora Cataract Trailway Association $116,400 2 years

Grey Wellington Theatre Guild $11,600 1 year

Guelph and District Multicultural Festival Inc. $114,000 3 years
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Community Grants
Waterloo, Wellington, Dufferin (Continued)

Organization Name Amount Term

Guelph Symphony Orchestra $10,000 1 year

Guelph/Wellington Community Leadership Institute 
c/o Volunteer Centre of Guelph/Wellington $87,600 18 months

Guelph-Wellington Women in Crisis $60,900 1 year

Hespeler Minor Softball Association Incorporated $15,000 1 year

Island Lake Community Trails Project c/o Credit Valley 
Conservation Foundation - Friends of Island Lake Committee $75,000 1 year

kidsLINK $82,300 3 years

Kin Canada $61,000 1 year

Kitchener Blues Community Inc. $72,000 18 months

Kitchener-Waterloo Art Gallery $83,400 20 months

Kitchener-Waterloo Diving Club $8,700 1 year

Kitchener-Waterloo Extend-A-Family $91,300 2 years

Kitchener-Waterloo Multicultural Centre $54,900 1 year

Kitchener-Waterloo Track & Field Association $60,000 1 year

Kujawiacy Polish Song and Dance Ensemble $13,000 1 year

K-W Habilitation Services $8,000 1 year

K-W Water Polo Club $11,000 1 year

LivingWorks Community Training Team c/o Canadian 
Mental Health Association Grand River Branch $90,100 3 years

Master Gardeners, Cambridge group c/o 
Master Gardeners of Ontario Inc. $8,100 1 year

Memory Clinic's Outreach Service for Vulnerable Seniors 
c/o Trellis Mental Health and Developmental Services $107,600 18 months

Ontario Students Against Impaired Driving $37,300 2 years

Opportunities Waterloo Region $222,700 3 years

Our Place Family Resource and Early Years Centre $70,000 1 year

Participation House Waterloo-Wellington $23,000 4 months

Planned Parenthood Waterloo Region $44,100 1 year

Ponsonby Recreation Club Incorporated $22,000 1 year

Portage Ontario $15,000 1 year

Puppets Elora c/o Ontario Puppetry Association $5,700 1 year

Ray of Hope Inc. $50,000 3 months

ROOF (Reaching Our Outdoor Friends) $49,800 2 years

Royal Canadian Legion Branch 233 - Orangeville $40,000 1 year
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Community Grants
Waterloo, Wellington, Dufferin

Organization Name Amount Term

Seniors at Risk c/o Trellis Mental Health and Development Services $107,800 2 years

Southern Ontario Locomotive Restoration Society $30,400 1 year

St. John Ambulance Kitchener-Waterloo Branch 
c/o St. John Council for Ontario $35,000 1 year

Sunrise Therapeutic Riding & Learning Centre $49,400 1 year

Supporting Kids in Camp c/o KidsAbility Centre for Child Development $84,200 2 years

Sustainable Waterloo $25,000 1 year

Suzuki String School of Guelph $55,000 2 years

The Guelph Little Theatre $54,000 1 year

The HelpNow Project c/o Family Counselling and 
Support Services for Guelph-Wellington $108,100 18 months

The Kitchener-Waterloo Symphony $114,000 3 years

The New Quarterly Literary Society Inc. $78,000 3 years

Three Centuries Festival (Elora Festival) $36,000 1 year

Township of Woolwich/Woolwich Memorial Centre User 
Groups c/o Corporation of the Township of Woolwich $150,000 1 year

United Way Community Services of Guelph and District $40,000 1 year

United Way of Cambridge and North Dumfries $82,000 2 years

Volunteer Action Centre of K-W and Area Inc. $130,400 2 years

Waterloo Regional Boxing Academy $75,000 1 year

Waterloo Regional Matmen Wrestling Club $30,000 1 year

Waterloo Regional REACT $39,800 1 year

Woolwich Interfaith Counselling Society $75,000 1 year

YMCA of Cambridge $121,100 3 years

YWCA of Cambridge $103,900 2 years

Total $4,915,900

Total Grants 83 
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Organization Name Amount Term

Active Circle c/o Motivate Canada $400,000 2 years

Actua $527,500 3 years

Advanced Coronary Treatment (ACT) Foundation $450,000 3 years

Agrienergy Producers' Association of Ontario $58,000 2 years

Algonquin Wildlands League $250,400 2 years

Alliance for Canadian New Music Projects $65,000 2 years

Alternative Transportation $158,100 22 months

Arts Education in Your Community c/o 
Community Arts and Heritage Project $180,000 2 years

ArtsBuild Ontario $280,000 3 years

Association for Canadian Educational Resources $99,300 18 months

Association francophone de parents et d'enfants dyslexiques (AFPED) $26,000 1 year

Association of Early Childhood Educators Ontario (AECEO) $25,000 1 year

Augmentative Communication Community Partnerships Canada $158,800 2 years

Boxing Ontario Incorporated $217,600 2 years

Canadian Conference of the Arts $116,400 2 years

Canadian Fitness and Lifestyle Research Institute $200,000 2 years

Canadian HIV/AIDS Legal Network $212,600 3 years

Canadian Institute of Cultural Affairs (ICA Canada) $212,900 42 months

Canadian National Institute for the Blind, Ontario Division $96,000 3 months

Canadian Sport Tourism Alliance - Alliance 
canadienne du tourism sportif $214,400 3 years

Canadian Women's Foundation $450,000 5 years

Canadian Working Group on HIV and Rehabilitation (CWGHR)/
Groupe de travail canadien sur le VIH et la réinsertion sociale $292,500 2 years

Centre for City Ecology c/o Sage Centre $143,500 2 years

Centre for Equality Rights in Accommodation $161,600 2 years

Centre for Social Innovation $66,700 1 year

Community Information Online Consortium $246,000 2 years

Corpus Dance Projects $129,000 18 months

COSTI IMMIGRANT SERVICES $384,600 2 years

Council of Ontario Drama & Dance Educators $25,000 1 year

Cultural Pluralism in the Performing Arts Movement 
in Ontario c/o CCI-Ontario Presenting Network $90,000 25 months

Distress Centres Ontario Accreditation Review Project 
c/o Ontario Association of Distress Centres $37,800 6 months

Province-Wide
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Organization Name Amount Term

Earth Rangers Foundation $171,500 2 years

EcoSource Mississauga $203,200 2 years

Elmer Iseler Singers c/o Soundstreams Canada $200,000 2 years

Ensemble pour l'empathie a/s Racines de l'empathie $106,000 2 years

Environics Institute for Survey Research $150,000 1 year

Environment & Diversity Project c/o Sustainability Network $112,000 1 year

Environmental Defence Canada $79,200 8 months

Environmental Program Development in Three Ontario 
First Nations c/o Environmental Defence Canada Inc. $130,200 18 months

Faith & the Common Good $262,000 4 years

FitSpirit Community Organization/Organisme communautaire FitSpirit $125,300 18 months

For My Homework Inc. $76,400 1 year

Freeform Solutions $249,200 3 years

Health Nexus $242,200 2 years

HIGH FIVE - Offord Sport Review and Development c/o 
Parks and Recreation Ontario/Parcs et Loisirs Ontario $249,400 1 year

Hockey Development Centre for Ontario $143,400 2 years

Hot Docs $225,000 3 years

Inclusive Recreation Steering Committee c/o 
Community Living Thunder Bay $40,000 1 year

International Fun and Team Athletics $240,000 2 years

Les Éditions David $246,000 3 years

Les Éditions du Vermillon $170,000 2 years

Mamow Sha-way-gi-kay-win: North-South Partnership for Children $188,500 1 year

Media For Change c/o Family Service Thames Valley $74,600 1 year

Menaka Thakkar Dance Company $120,000 30 months

Mothers Against Drunk Driving Canada $217,000 2 years

Music and Film in Motion/Music et film en movement (MFM) $35,000 10 months

National Aboriginal Achievement Foundation $98,700 1 year

Neegoni Wabun Gi Gay Win Lodge Inc. $90,800 2 years

Noojimawin Health Authority $45,600 6 months

Notre santé, notre priorité a/s Le Centre de 
services de santé - Peel et Halton (CSSPH) $350,000 2 years

Ontario Crafts Council $215,000 3 years

Ontario Genealogical Society $179,400 2 years

Ontario Land Trust Alliance Inc. $300,800 3 years

Province-Wide

Ontario Trillium Foundation Annual Report 2007-200872 Annual Report 2008-2009



Organization Name Amount Term

Ontario Nature $205,000 3 years

Ontario Network for the Prevention of Elder Abuse $415,700 3 years

Ontario Nonprofit Network c/o Centre for Social Innovation $338,500 3 years

Ontario Peer Development Initiative $196,200 18 months

Ontario Recreational Canoeing and Kayaking Association $93,000 2 years

Ontario Shelter Research Committee c/o Women's Shelter, 
Second Stage Housing & Counselling Services of Huron $248,200 2 years

Ontario Social Economy Roundtable (OSER) c/o Canadian 
Community Economic Development Network/Le Réseau 
canadien de développement économique communautaire

$170,500 2 years

Ontario Volleyball Association $205,000 3 years

Ontario Walkable Communities Collaborative 
c/o Green Communities Association $248,500 3 years

Ontario Yoga Association $25,000 6 months

Oshki Aayaa'aag Bimaadiziiwin Foundation 
(Good Life for Young People) $50,000 6 months

Ovarian Cancer Canada / Cancer de l'Ovaire Canada $70,000 1 year

Piano Plus $117,000 3 years

Picasso Pro c/o Creative Trust for Arts & Culture $215,000 30 months

Planet IndigenUs Mentorship Circle c/o Harbourfront Corporation $275,000 3 years

Programme de développement d'économie sociale a/s Réseau 
de développement économique et d'employabilité de l'Ontario $374,800 2 years

Raising The Roof/Chez Toit $100,000 1 year

Reach for the Rainbow Ontario $295,100 3 years

Sampradaya Dance Creations $245,000 3 years

Sci-Tech Ontario $225,000 3 years

Sogo Active Ontario c/o Participaction $100,000 1 year

Spark of Brilliance c/o Trellis Mental Health 
and Developmental Services $190,700 3 years

Springtide Resources Inc. $196,600 2 years

Tafelmusik $250,000 3 years

Tallgrass Ontario $130,000 3 years

Tapestry and Canadian Diabetes Association 
c/o Tapestry New Opera Works $200,000 2 years

The ABC's of Safe Sleep c/o The Canadian 
Foundation for the Study of Infant Deaths $206,400 2 years

The Bruce Trail Conservancy $325,100 3 years

The Canadian Hearing Society $191,600 1 year

Province-Wide (Continued)
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Organization Name Amount Term

The Council for Business and the Arts in Canada $540,000 4 years

The Dominion Institute $150,000 2 years

The Hearing Foundation of Canada $210,000 16 months

The Land Between Collaborative c/o Kawartha Heritage Conservancy $90,000 1 year

Theatre Museum Canada/Musée Theatre Canada $25,000 1 year

Theatre Ontario $76,600 2 years

Trillium Childhood Cancer Support Centre $87,000 6 months

True Sport Foundation $475,900 3 years

Voices of Positive Women & PASAN c/o PASAN 
(Prisoners with HIV/AIDS Support Action Network) $50,100 1 year

Weengushk Film Institute $50,000 18 months

Welland International Flatwater Centre Collaborative 
c/o Welland Recreational Canal Corporation $100,000 2 years

Women's Legal Education and Action Fund Foundation $148,200 18 months

Women's Mental Health and Addictions Action Research 
Coalition:Woman Abuse Screening Protocol Project 
Committee c/o London Abused Women's Centre

$58,600 8 months

World University Service of Canada $70,600 1 year

Your Spirit is Your Voice c/o Tikinagan Child and Family Services $133,800 1 year

Total $19,479,800

Total Grants 107 

Province-Wide
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Future Fund

Organization Name Amount Term

Centre for Innovative Social Enterprise c/o Causeway Work Centre $342,700 3 years

Community Power Training Collaborative c/o 
Ontario Sustainable Energy Association $505,700 3 years

Environment & Diversity Project c/o Sustainability Network $352,000 4 years

FarmON Alliance c/o FarmStart $448,900 3 years

Financing our Future c/o Carleton Centre for 
Community Innovation, Carleton University $299,200 30 months

LASI World Skills $500,000 3 years

MaRS Discovery District $30,000 1 year

Northern Connections c/o Ontario Nature $355,600 3 years

ProtoLaunch Group c/o Sault Ste. Marie Innovation Centre $461,800 3 years

Stewardship Funds to Save Community Lands 
c/o Ontario Land Trust Alliance $337,800 3 years

Youth Opportunity Centre c/o Moose Cree First Nation $366,300 4 years

Total $4,000,000

Total Grants 11 
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As at March 31, 2009 

 Date Appointed  Term Expires

Helen Burstyn, Chair 12.09.04 AGM 2010

Janet Passmore, Treasurer 06.29.06 AGM2009

Charles Coffey, Vice-Chair 04.30.08 AGM 2011

Donna Gilhooly, Associate Vice-Chair 10.01.04 AGM 2010

Harmail Basi 10.01.04 AGM 2010

Sylvie Bigras 10.01.04 AGM 2010

Fiona Blondin-Fiorini 06.06.07 AGM 2010

Shirley Cheechoo 10.01.04 AGM 2010

Vincent Conville 10.01.04 AGM 2009

Andrea Delvaillé 12.09.04 AGM 2010

Kathleen Freeman 09.24.08 AGM2010

Ken Goldberg 10.01.04 AGM 2010

Brian Hutchings 06.29.06 AGM 2009

Bruce Lourie 10.01.04 AGM 2010

Jennifer Lynn 10.01.04 AGM 2010

Isabel Metcalfe 12.09.04 AGM 2010

Farah Mohamed 06.06.07 AGM 2010

Gisèle Richer 12.09.04 AGM 2010

Huguette Roy-Perron 11.19.08 AGM 2011

Sharyn Salsberg-Ezrin 12.09.04 AGM 2010

Nalini Stewart 06.29.06 AGM 2009

Winston Tinglin 10.01.04 AGM 2009

PARTNERS IN SERVING ONTARIO 
Ontario Trillium Foundation Board of Directors
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Ontario Trillium Foundation Grant Review Teams

Volunteers serving the Foundation in 2008-2009

1. Northwestern
 Term began Term expires
Brian L. Collins, Chair 13.01.2005 12.01.2011

Angela Sinclair-Wood 14.05.2008 13.05.2010
Edward (Ted) Hanley 01.09.2005 18.11.2010
Jason Hughes 28.05.2008 27.05.2010
John L. Remus 20.09.2006 19.09.2009
Joseph Romeo Duguay 11.10.2006 10.10.2009
Keith Nymark 28.05.2008 27.05.2011
Linda Hamilton 10.12.2008 09.12.2011
Lucille Michaud 13.01.2005 09.04.2011
Margaret Fiddler 01.09.2005 31.08.2010
Miriam Wall 28.05.2008 27.05.2011
Rita Demetzer 12.08.2008 11.08.2011
Russ Fortier 19.03.2003 02.05.2009
Sandra (Sandy)  Lychowyd 30.05.2006 29.05.2009

2. Algoma, Cochrane, Manitoulin, Sudbury 
 Term began Term expires
Suzanne Shawbonquit, Chair 22.06.06 21.06.09 
Hugette Roy-Perron, Chair 17.09.04 01.12.08

André Clement 12.08.08 11.08.10
Angela Becks 11.04.06 10.04.09
Bob Giroux 28.06.06 27.06.09
Brenda Alemany 23.03.05 22.03.11
Earl Dereski 23.03.05 22.03.11
Jeanne E. Warwick Conroy 13.01.05 06.05.11
Lisa Corbiere-Addison 11.06.08 10.06.11
Marc Dupuis 03.12.08 02.12.10
Mariette Rains 04.05.05 03.05.11
Mariette Sutherland 08.10.08 07.10.10
Michael Erskine 28.05.08 27.05.11
Nicole Rouel Weppler 23.06.04 22.06.10
Niilo Saari 12.08.08 12.08.11
Patricia Toffolo 04.05.05 03.05.11
Paul Bagordo 01.12.04 30.11.10
Romana Siegel 23.03.05 22.03.11
Sergio Saccucci 15.07.05 14.05.10
Steve Van Duin 23.03.05 22.03.11
Thomas G. Trainor 30.05.07 29.05.10
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Grant Review Teams

3. Muskoka, Nipissing, Parry Sound, Timiskaming
 Term began Term expires
Lois Cookman, Chair 03.11.04 02.11.10 
Christina Golding, Chair 05.01.06 13.02.09

Andrew W. Ager 23.03.06 22.03.09
Carol Ann DiBartolomeo 17.09.04 16.09.10
Ed Eng 25.06.03 24.06.09
Helene Culhane 11.10.06 10.10.09
Jean Beckett 28.05.08 27.05.10
Jennifer Schnier 01.10.08 30.09.11
Jon Gurr 03.02.06 02.02.09
Joseph Lynch 10.11.05 09.11.08
Kathleen Anne Tod 19.12.08 18.12.11
Lynn Middaugh 15.11.06 14.11.08
Mary Lou Arrowsmith 04.05.05 03.05.10
Melissa Mackey 05.01.06 04.01.09
Muriel Bush 23.03.05 22.03.10
Phyllis Winnington-Ingram 28.05.08 09.01.09
Shawn Chorney 14.05.08 13.05.11
Sherry Green 14.05.08 13.05.11
Teri Souter 28.05.08 27.05.11
Vincent Shanks 03.02.06 02.02.09
William (Bill) Roberts 03.02.06 02.02.09

4. Champlain
 Term began Term expires
Gérald G. Samson, Chair 08.08.05 08.07.09

Benoit Paré 12.08.08 11.08.11
Chikwa Zahinda 11.02.09 10.02.12
Colleen Sauriol 24.08.06 23.08.09
Diane McKinnon 15.07.05 14.07.11
Eldon Horner 01.08.03 31.07.09
Frank G. Dyson 24.08.06 23.08.09
Gérald Charlebois 02.03.05 01.03.08
Glenn Arthur 20.04.05 19.04.10
Guy Jamieson 01.10.08 30.09.10
Joanne Haley 10.08.06 09.08.09
Jocelyne Besner 11.04.06 01.10.08
Jocelyne Chrétien Emmell 20.04.05 19.04.08
Keith De Cruz 08.08.05 11.10.08
Kelley Whitman-McKie 06.04.05 25.04.10
Levit Ledoux Koloko 11.10.06 10.10.09
Liz Hart 20.04.05 19.04.11
Paulette Hébert 12.08.08 11.08.11
Pierre Caron 17.09.04 16.09.10
Rhéal Filion 17.09.04 16.09.10
Robert J. (Bob) Wilson 17.09.04 16.09.10
Ronald MacDonell 03.12.08 02.12.10
Sandra Lalonde 01.08.06 31.07.09

Ontario Trillium Foundation Annual Report 2007-200878 Annual Report 2008-2009



Grant Review Teams

Sandra MacInnis 10.12.08 09.12.11
Susan Carter 01.06.05 31.05.08
Warren Maidens 24.08.06 01.10.08

5. Quinte, Kingston, Rideau  
 Term began Term expires
John McDougall, Chair 04.06.03 03.06.09

Ann Wardrop 03.02.06 02.02.09
Bonnie Pelletier-Maracle 15.12.05 14.12.11
Bruce Duncan 23.03.06 22.03.09
Carol Chisholm 01.12.04 30.11.10
Chalmer R. Conn 19.03.03 02.05.09
David Mullins 06.04.05 05.04.08
Dixie O’Reilly 12.08.08 10.08.11
E. Anne Prichard 01.10.08 30.09.11
Elizabeth (Liz) Churcher 13.01.05 12.01.11
Gordon Munroe 12.08.08 11.08.10
Hermine-Mimi Clancey 04.05.05 03.05.11
Jacqueline Franklin 08.10.08 07.10.10
Judi Baril 19.03.03 02.05.09
Kathleen (Kay) Manderville 17.09.04 16.09.10
Marny McCook 01.10.08 30.09.11
Martin Patrick Halloran 15.07.05 14.07.11
Mary Anne Evans 25.10.06 30.01.09
Mary Lettner 20.04.05 28.05.08
Nina Jenkins 07.02.07 06.02.10
Patricia (Pat) Potter 22.06.05 21.06.10
Robert (Bob) Lavoie 20.04.05 19.04.10
Sandra Sidsworth 03.09.08 02.09.10
Stephanie Attwood 04.06.03 06.04.09
Valerie Deakin 23.03.05 22.03.11
Wanda Slawinski 10.12.08 09.12.10

6. Grand River   
 Term began Term expires
Delia O’Byrne, Chair 17.09.04 16.09.10

Anne Tinker 04.02.09 03.02.12
Barbara Tanner-Billings 10.08.06 09.08.09
Carole Smith 06.04.05 05.04.10
Charles (Chuck) Beach 10.08.06 09.08.09
Colette Wilson 24.08.06 23.08.09
Harley Clark 21.02.07 20.02.10
James Peters 19.12.08 18.12.11
Jennifer Crandall 19.12.08 18.12.10
John W. Race 17.09.04 16.09.10
Karen Richardson 11.10.06 18.11.11
Lance Calbeck 16.05.07 15.05.10
Larry Davis 10.12.08 09.12.10

Champlain (continued)         Term began      Term expires
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Marjorie Featherston 10.08.06 21.05.08
Michelle Bomberry 19.12.08 18.12.11
Paul Brown 24.08.06 23.08.09
Paulette Tremblay 20.04.05 19.04.08
Sheryl Main 20.04.05 19.10.08
Vincent A. Bucci 06.04.05 05.04.11

 

7. Waterloo, Wellington, Dufferin  
 Term began Term expires
Donald Bourgeois, Chair 05.07.04 04.07.10

Cameron Ballantyne 15.12.05 30.06.08
Catharine Collins 01.09.05 21.01.12
Crista Renner 04.02.09 03.02.11
Diana Vangelisti 10.12.08 09.12.11
Don Jonescu 23.03.05 22.03.11
Jeff Hepple 06.09.06 05.09.09
Lucie Allard 12.08.08 11.08.11
Martin Bosch 10.08.06 09.08.09
Neil Aitchison 05.07.04 04.07.10
Peter Hinchcliffe 29.11.06 28.11.09
Richard Fearon 24.09.08 23.09.11
Rob Black 24.08.06 23.08.09
Samantha Veniez 28.06.06 27.06.09
Simon Mortimer 12.08.08 11.08.11
Spencer Finch 05.03.03 06.06.09
Theresa Sauren 01.10.08 30.09.10
Winston Uytenbogaart 10.12.08 09.12.10

8. Hamilton 
 Term began Term expires
Frank Passaro, Chair 03.02.06 02.02.12

Ali Cheaib 24.08.06 23.08.09
Anne Bain 23.06.04 22.06.10
Arthur B. Samson 23.06.04 22.06.10
Ashok Kumar 07.02.07 06.02.10
David Cummins 10.11.05 09.11.11
Dominic Verticchio 29.11.06 28.11.09
Elizabeth Templeton 10.11.05 09.11.10
Grahame Meredith 24.08.06 23.08.09
James Michael Kirk 03.02.06 02.02.09
Jayanti (Jay) Parekh 23.06.07 22.06.10
Kate Bursey 06.04.05 06.04.10
Leo Normandeau 07.12.05 06.12.11
Mary Sellars 29.11.06 28.11.09
Patrica Wright 03.05.06 02.05.09
Scott Koblyk 15.12.05 14.12.08

Grand River (continued)       Term began    Term expires 
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Grant Review Teams

9. Niagara 
 Term began Term expires
G. Peter Hammond, Chair 22.06.05 21.06.11

Adèle Tanguay 04.05.05 03.05.08
Bernie Villamil 05.07.04 04.07.10
Blake McIntyre 01.09.05 31.08.11
Bob Agar 20.04.05 19.04.08
Chris Knapp 05.01.06 04.01.09
Christine Clark 17.09.07 16.09.11
Donna Ford 17.09.07 16.09.11
Donna Herrington 17.09.04 16.09.10
Ellis Katsof 19.12.08 18.12.11
Fred Steeve 17.09.04 16.09.10
Grace-Ann Cambray 05.07.04 04.07.10
Harvie Hagerty 15.11.06 14.11.09
John Storm 01.10.08 30.09.10
Laura Ip 10.12.08 09.12.11
Louise Farquhar 06.04.05 05.04.10
Natalie Howard 21.12.06 20.12.09
William J. D. Walters 01.09.05 31.08.11
Yvonne Hopkins 06.09.06 05.09.09

10. Grey, Bruce, Huron, Perth 
 Term began Term expires
Kathleen Pletsch, Chair 23.06.04 22.06.10

Allan Harrison 05.10.05 09.12.10
David T. Mullen 24.08.06 23.08.09
Douglas Pratley 15.12.05 14.12.08
Frank Coulter 08.08.05 07.08.09
Jim Murray 18.12.04 17.12.10
Joe Hogan 23.03.06 22.03.09
Joe Steffler 15.04.03 02.05.09
Kees van Aalst 05.10.06 04.10.09
Kevin Eccles 06.04.05 05.04.11
Leigh Butler 08.08.05 07.08.11
Liz Chalmers 10.08.06 09.08.09
Margaret Menzies 13.12.06 12.12.09
Mark Lemon 08.08.05 07.08.10
Milton McIver 22.06.06 21.06.09
Muriel Murphy 04.05.05 03.05.11
Nora Rocher 06.04.05 05.04.11
Patricia Froud 06.12.06 05.12.09
Richard Smelski 11.04.07 10.04.10
Ron L. Oswald 04.05.05 03.05.11
Sandy Bell 30.05.06 29.05.09
Sharon Weitzel 17.09.04 16.09.10
Susan Fry 23.03.06 22.03.09
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Grant Review Teams

11. Essex, Kent, Lambton
 Term began Term expires
Rosemary Lavoratore, Chair 03.23.05 03.22.10

Angelo D. Minato 13.12.06 12.12.09
Brenda Frezza 23.03.05 22.03.11
Brian Gray 23.06.04 22.06.10
Diane Schultz 10.12.08 09.12.11
Edward Myers 01.09.05 31.08.11
George Darnley 21.02.07 20.02.10
Jeff Topliffe 23.06.04 22.06.10
Jordan Dennis 07.03.07 06.03.10
Joseph Vandenbogaerde 16.05.07 15.05.10
Mindy Bowls 03.12.08 02.12.10
Pam Fenchak 10.11.05 09.11.11
Reginald Johnson 04.02.09 03.02.11
Shannon Prince 20.06.07 19.06.11
Shelly Bondy 29.11.06 28.11.09
Theresa Baldassarre 02.03.05 01.03.11

12. Thames Valley
 Term began Term expires
Paul Willoughby, Chair 01.12.04 30.11.10

Allan Kirk 18.10.05 17.10.08
Ann Lapchinski 24.08.06 23.08.09
Bettianne Hedges 20.06.07 19.06.10
Brian George 30.06.06 29.06.09
Deborah Armstrong 19.12.08 18.12.10
Denis Gadwa 22.06.06 21.06.11
Dev R. Sainani 22.06.05 21.06.11
Dixie Westcar 24.08.06 23.08.11
Janet Golding 11.10.06 10.10.09
Joe Van Overberghe 30.06.06 29.06.09
John J. Lessif 01.06.05 31.05.10
Michael Crook 19.12.08 18.12.10
Sharon O’Leary 04.02.09 03.02.12
Theodore (Ted) Lo 23.03.06 22.03.09
W. L. Keith Bingham 30.06.06 29.06.09

13. Halton-Peel 
 Term began Term expires
Lindsay Williams, Chair 11.04.06 09.04.12

Andrew Ward 30.05.06 29.05.09
Angela DiCintio 10.08.06 09.08.11
Bogdan Poprawski 01.12.04 30.11.10
Carlyle Khan 24.08.06 23.08.09
Claire Parent-McCullough 17.09.07 22.06.11
E. Gail Grant 15.07.05 14.07.11
Gayle Wadden 18.04.07 17.04.10
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Grant Review Teams

Gladstone L. (Bill) Allison 07.03.07 06.03.10
Grace Soyao 11.04.06 10.04.09
Grant Gooding 23.06.04 24.08.08
Luz del Rosario 30.06.06 29.06.09
Neil Bunn 10.08.06 09.08.10
Shameem Mohammed 24.08.06 23.08.10
Sharon McBride 11.04.06 10.04.09
Sheila Tutty 30.05.06 29.05.09
Terry Quinn 17.09.04 16.09.10

14. Simcoe-York 
 Term began Term expires
Loreta Pavese, Chair 17.09.04 16.09.10

Alicia Savage 15.07.05 14.07.11
Angela Angelique Schinas 12.08.08 11.08.11
David Dupuis 12.08.08 11.08.10
Debra Bellamy 24.09.08 23.09.10
Donna Bere 15.07.05 14.07.08
Dorothy Cauthers 06.09.06 05.09.09
Duncan Newman 07.10.04 06.10.10
Fatima Haji 17.09.04 16.09.10
Gary Gladstone 15.11.06 14.11.09
Grace Locilento 07.12.05 06.12.11
Karen Boatman 01.10.08 30.09.11
Mervat Rashwan 15.11.06 14.11.09
Paul A. Howe 12.08.08 11.08.11
Richard Beatty 23.12.02 14.02.09
Richard Oatway 10.08.06 09.08.09
Shernett Martin 10.12.08 09.12.11
Vijay K. Lekhi 17.09.04 16.09.10

15. Durham, Haliburton, Kawartha, Pine Ridge
 Term began Term expires
Lloyd White, Chair 17.09.04 16.09.10

Andre Vallillee 08.10.08 07.10.10
Brian Markle 10.08.06 09.08.09
Dorothy Fletcher 23.06.04 22.06.10
Eileen Nolan 24.08.06 23.08.09
Enrique Robert 08.10.08 07.10.11
Gladys Petherick 08.08.05 07.08.11
Greg Mather 25.06.03 24.06.09
Helen Walsh 10.08.06 09.08.09
Janice Sanderson 03.02.06 02.02.09
John Stafford 22.06.06 21.06.09
Jon Tondeur 23.06.04 22.06.10
June Forsbrey 01.10.08 30.09.10
Karen Cook 19.12.08 18.12.10

Halton-Peel (continued)       Term began    Term expires 

Ontario Trillium Foundation Annual Report 2007-200883 Annual Report 2008-2009



Grant Review Teams

Katherine Forgaard Pullen 05.10.05 18.11.11
Klara Oyler 03.02.06 02.02.09
Morris Tait 06.04.05 05.04.11
Muttukumaru Chandrakumaran 20.06.07 19.06.11
Naomi Omar-Ali 15.11.06 14.11.10
Pramilla Ramdahani 11.10.06 10.10.09

William James Nesbitt 20.06.07 19.06.11

16. Toronto 
 Term began Term expires
Alexander Waugh, Chair 05.07.04 04.07.10

Carol Roberts 07.12.05 06.12.08
Charles Hain 17.09.04 16.09.10
Cynthia Head 20.09.06 19.09.09
Heather Simpson 24.08.06 23.08.09
Helen Ching-Kircher 08.09.03 02.09.10
Hugh Furneaux 17.09.04 16.09.10
Jonathan Chan-Combrink 28.06.06 01.06.08
Jascha Jabes 12.08.08 11.08.10
Julia Anne Shea 24.09.03 23.09.09
Kehinde Bah 18.02.09 17.02.12
Mario Nigro 05.10.06 04.10.09
Olga Madeira 24.08.06 23.08.09
Paul-François Sylvestre 02.03.05 01.03.11
Raymond Fredette 02.03.05 01.03.11
Rinaldo Boni 12.08.08 11.08.11
Saira Zuberi 24.08.06 23.08.09
Selwyn Henry 21.12.06 20.12.09
Shane Kazushner 17.09.07 16.09.08
Shehnaz Alidina 01.06.05 26.04.08
Susan Salek 12.08.08 11.08.11
Sylvia Pusey 05.07.07 04.07.10

Durham, Haliburton, Kawartha, Pine Ridge (continued)   Term began    Term expires
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Ontario Trillium Foundation Staff

As at March 31, 2009

Name Title
Bernadette Ang Assistant Manager, Program Systems

Lyn Apgar Area Manager

Mary Banks Coordinator of Program Administration

Raquel Batres File and Mail Clerk

Janice Baun Coordinator of Program Administration

Tracey Beauregard Program Manager

Suzanne Bédard Program Manager, Future Fund

Véronique Belcourt Office Assistant 

Anne-Marie Bénéteau Program Manager

Ginny Boissoneau Grants Associate

Natalie Bortkiewicz Research and Knowledge Management Assistant

Sandra Braendle Program Manager

Linda Briggs Program Manager

Maureen Brophy Program Manager

Samantha Burdett Senior Policy/Research Analyst

Carrie Butcher Program Manager

Pamela Campbell Program Manager

Ron Cantin Program Manager

Sonja Carcasole Coordinator of Program Administration

L. Robin Cardozo Chef Executive Officer

Nelson Chan Manager of Finance

Alvin Chau Network/Database Administration

Henry Chong Area Manager

Peter Chu Director of IT

Clarisse Chung-Moi Coordinator of Program Administration

Kerrin Churchill Area Manager

Bernice Cipparrone Area Manager

Trudi Collins Program Manager

Brian Conway Program Manager

Colleen Coyne Communications Officer, Event Planning

Gunilla Creutz Coordinator of Program Administration

Sandra Cruickshanks Director of Communications and Public Affairs

Wendy Dempsey Program Manager

W. Blair Dimock Director Research, Evaluation and Knowledge Management

Nuala Doherty Program Manager

Patricia Else Director of Granting Operations 

Manfred Fast Program Manager

Maggie Fischbuch Program Manager
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Staff

Faustina Fordjor Office Assistant

Craig Fortier Program Manager

Arti Freeman Program Manager

Jean-Paul Gagnon Program Manager

Lorraine Gandolfo Manager of Communications and Public Affairs

Lina Giovenco Coordinator of Program Administration

Doug Gore Program Manager

Elena Gouchtchina Office Assistant

Justine Greenland Duke Senior Advisor, Knowledge Management

Kevin Humphrey Program Manager 

Loida Ignacio Coordinator of Program Administration

Rozina Issani Receptionist

Karen Kahelin Grants Associate

Kiyomi Kaiura Financial Assistant

Cheryl Kanwar Coordinator of Human Resources and Volunteer Relations

Lori Kay Communications Officer, Event Planning

Diane Labelle-Davey Director of Human Resources and Volunteer Relations

Patrick Lee ESD Systems Integrator

Kalok Leung Coordinator of Financial Administration

Inga Lubbock Program Manager

Donna Maitland Program Manager 

Angelita Marquez Program Manager

Charlotte Martin Coordinator of Program Administration

Melanie Maxwell Manager of Administration

Valérie McCullough Webmaster

Julie McFayden Senior Communications Officer

Tara McMurtry Program Manager

Gilmar Militar Program Manager

Jennifer Miller Area Manager

Benny Min Coordinator of Program Administration

Manjula Mistry Human Resources Advisor

Ruth Mott Program Manager

Colette Naubert Area Manager

Clare Nolan Coordinator of Program Administration 

B. Paul O’Brien Coordinator of Program Administration

Eulan O’Connor Coordinator of Corporate Administration

Géraldine Offen Communications and Translation Officer 

Stacey O’Neill Coordinator of Program Administration

Renée Ouellet Senior Communications Officer 

Diane Papadopoulos Coordinator of Program Administration 

Anne Pashley Vice-President of Finance and Administration

Name Title
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Staff (Continued)

Arkeshkumar Patel ESD Systems Integrator

Lenka Petric Program Manager

Marius Picos Research Analyst

Jacqueline Powell Program Manager, Future Fund

Beth Puddicombe Program Manager

John Pugsley Program Manager

Joanne Richmond Project Manager of Business Process Improvement 

Jennifer Risdon Manager of Human Resources

Tracey Robertson Program Manager

Carmen Robillard Program Manager

Michael Russell Business Systems Analyst

Jean-François Sabourin Grants Associate

Maja Saletto Jankovic Program Manager, Future Fund

Dennis Scott Junior IT Analyst

Cameron Segger Coordinator of Program Administration/Business Process Improvement

Sanjay Shahani Program Manager

Heather Shaw Senior Policy and Research Analyst

Diane Sigouin-Daniel Communications Officer, Event Planning

Sheila Simpson Program Manager

Stella Sosu Receptionist 

Carol Spode Office Assistant

Marilyn Struthers Program Manager

Mary-Jo Sullivan Program Manager

Vivian Thomas Office Assistant

Yacouba Traoré Program Manager

Stacey Tsourounis Office Assistant

James Tutty Office Assistant

Susan West Program Manager

Jacinth Whittingham Coordinator of Program Administration

Kristian Whyte File and Facilities Clerk

Dan Wilson Manager of Policy, Research and Evaluation

Alexandra Wojtow Grants Associate

Constance Yau Coordinator of Grant Administration

Shewhat Zeru Event Planner

Name Title
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FINANCIAL REPORT

Report on Financial Performance 
Ontario Trillium Foundation, March 31, 2009

In 2008-2009, the Ontario Trillium Foundation received $110.0 million from the Ministry of  •
Culture for its granting programs.  ($111.3 million is recorded in the Statement of Operations; the 
difference came from Deferred Contributions, from underspending in previous years.)  Other 
revenue sources include investment income ($4.1 million), funds made available as a result of 
rescinded grants ($1.8 million), and $160,000 from the Ministry of Citizenship and Immigration for 
a funding partnership to be carried out in the following year.

Of this funding, $104.6 million was pledged for grants, and grantmaking expenses, services to the  •
community, support services, and amortization together amounted to $12.6 million.  

At March 31, 2009, the Foundation held approximately $108.9 million in investments, in fixed  •
income securities (short-term treasury bills and bankers’ acceptances).  Most of these funds 
($104.0 million) are committed to multi-year grant pledges.  The Foundation’s investments are 
managed by the Ontario Financing Authority.

Funds may be recovered, or future payments rescinded, in cases where circumstances (e.g.  •
planned activities, budgets) change or where grant conditions or performance objectives are not 
met.

Accumulated net assets at year-end totaled almost $2.6 million, of which approximately $800,000  •
was invested in capital assets and $1.8 million represented unrestricted assets.  

Volunteers make a significant contribution to the operations of the Foundation. Given the difficulty  •
of estimating the monetary value, these contributions are not reflected in the financial statements.

In April 2009 the Foundation received funds from the Ministry of Culture in the amount of $120  •
million, representing an increased level of funding over the previous year.
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KPMG LLP Telephone (416) 228-7000 
Chartered Accountants Fax (416) 228-7123
Yonge Corporate Centre Internet www.kpmg.ca 
4100 Yonge Street Suite 200 
Toronto ON  M2P 2H3 

 Canada 

KPMG LLP, is a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG 
network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. 
KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP. 

AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors of Ontario Trillium Foundation 

We have audited the statement of financial position of Ontario Trillium Foundation as at March 31, 
2009 and the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then 
ended.  These financial statements are the responsibility of the Foundation's management.  Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those 
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of the Foundation as at March 31, 2009 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.  As required 
by the Corporations Act (Ontario), we report that, in our opinion, these principles have been applied 
on a basis consistent with that of the preceding year. 

Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

Toronto, Canada 

April 24, 2009 
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1

ONTARIO TRILLIUM FOUNDATION 
Statement of Financial Position 

March 31, 2009, with comparative figures for 2008 

2009 2008 

Assets
Cash $ 638,446 $ 921,472 
Prepaid expenses and other 145,628 138,408 
Investments (note 3) 108,899,428 108,557,829 
Capital assets, net (note 4) 815,592 530,190 

  $ 110,499,094 $ 110,147,899 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 699,210 $ 542,305 
Deferred contributions (note 5(a)) 3,192,536 4,344,852 
Grants payable (note 5(b)) 104,035,306 102,688,700 
  107,927,052 107,575,857 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital assets 815,592 530,190 
Unrestricted 1,756,450 2,041,852 
  2,572,042 2,572,042 

  $ 110,499,094 $ 110,147,899 

Ontario Trillium Foundation Annual Report 2007-200890 Annual Report 2008-2009



2

ONTARIO TRILLIUM FOUNDATION 
Statement of Operations

Year ended March 31, 2009, with comparative figures for 2008 

2009 2008 

Revenue:
Ontario government funding (note 5(a)) $ 111,312,316 $ 104,330,952 
Grants rescinded or recovered 1,796,356 1,354,188 
Investment income 4,091,673 7,030,212 

117,200,345 112,715,352 

Expenses:
Program activities: 

Grants pledged (note 5) 104,596,300 100,306,100 
Grantmaking expenses (note 5) 10,963,450 10,621,920 
Services to the community (note 6) 258,455 228,460 

115,818,205 111,156,480 
Support services 1,040,452 1,147,893 
Amortization 341,688 410,979

117,200,345 112,715,352 

Excess of revenue over expenses $ – $ –

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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3

ONTARIO TRILLIUM FOUNDATION 
Statement of Changes in Net Assets 

Year ended March 31, 2009, with comparative figures for 2008 

 2009 2008 
Invested in

  capital assets Unrestricted Total Total 

Net assets, beginning of year $ 530,190  $ 2,041,852 $ 2,572,042 $ 2,572,042 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue 
over expenses (341,688) 341,688 – – 

Purchase of capital assets 627,090 (627,090) – –

Net assets, end of year $ 815,592 $ 1,756,450 $ 2,572,042 $ 2,572,042 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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4

ONTARIO TRILLIUM FOUNDATION 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Year ended March 31, 2009, with comparative figures for 2008 

2009 2008 

Cash provided by (used in): 

Operating activities:
Amortization of capital assets which does not involve cash $ 341,688 $ 410,979 
Loss on disposal of capital assets – 525
Change in non-cash operating items 343,975 6,933,635 

685,663 7,345,139 

Investing activities: 
Net increase in investments (341,599) (6,903,524) 
Purchase of capital assets (627,090) (441,453) 

(968,689) (7,344,977) 

Increase (decrease) in cash (283,026) 162

Cash, beginning of year 921,472 921,310 

Cash, end of year $ 638,446 $ 921,472 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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ONTARIO TRILLIUM FOUNDATION 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended March 31, 2009 

5

The Ontario Trillium Foundation (the "Foundation" or "OTF"), an agency of the Ministry of Culture 
(the "Ministry"), is financially supported by the Ontario government.  OTF began operations as an 
arm's-length agency of the Ontario government on August 23, 1982 and was incorporated without 
share capital under the laws of Ontario under letters patent dated November 17, 1982.  OTF's 
purpose is to build healthy and vibrant communities throughout Ontario, by strengthening the capacity 
of the voluntary sector through investments in community-based initiatives. 

Government funding is subject to Memoranda of Understanding that define how the funds must be 
invested and distributed. 

1. Significant accounting policies: 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally 
accepted accounting principles applied within the framework of the significant accounting 
policies summarized below: 

(a) Revenue recognition: 

OTF follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions, which include government 
funding.  Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable 
if the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably 
assured.  Externally restricted contributions are deferred and recognized as revenue in the 
year in which the related expenses are incurred. 

Investment income is recorded on the accrual basis. 

(b) Financial instruments: 

Short-term investments, treasury bills and bankers' acceptances are classified as held-for-
trading investments.  Short-term investments are carried at fair value as determined at the 
fiscal year end based on market values for the debt securities. 

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of investments are not 
considered significant and are expensed when paid. 

Investment purchase and sale transactions are accounted for on the settlement date. 

Cash consists of cash on hand and in banks.  Cash equivalents are classified as 
held-for-trading and are carried at fair value. 
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ONTARIO TRILLIUM FOUNDATION 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31, 2009 

6

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities and grants payable are classified as other 
financial liabilities and measured at amortized cost. 

In accordance with the Accounting Standards Board's decision to exempt not-for-profit 
organizations from the disclosure requirements with respect to financial instruments 
contained within The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants' ("CICA") Handbook 
Section 3862, Financial Instruments - Disclosures, and Section 3863, Financial 
Instruments - Presentation, the Foundation has elected not to adopt these standards in its 
financial statements. 

(c) Grants: 

Grants are recorded as expenses in the year that the Foundation approves the grant. 

(d) Expenses: 

Departmental expenses are allocated between grantmaking and support services based on 
the percentage of each department's activities devoted to these activities. 

(e) Capital assets: 

Capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization.  Amortization is 
provided on a straight-line basis over the following periods: 

Furniture and fixtures 5 years 
Computer hardware 3 years 
Computer software 3 years 
Leasehold improvements  Over term of lease 

(f) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenue and expenses during the year.  Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 
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ONTARIO TRILLIUM FOUNDATION 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31, 2009 

7

2. Future accounting changes: 

The CICA has issued revisions to the Section 4400 series of standards which related to not-for-
profit organizations. 

Section 4470, Disclosure of Allocated Expenses by Not-For-Profit Organizations, has been 
added, which requires certain disclosures when fundraising and general support expenses are 
allocated to other functions.  This change will be effective for the year commencing April 1, 
2009.  The change will enhance the current disclosure requirements but will not change the 
existing presentation requirements on the statement of operations. 

3. Investments: 

Investments, at fair value, are as follows: 

2009 2008

Treasury bills $ 93,801,557 $ 75,169,395 
Bankers' acceptances 15,097,871 20,014,914 
Deposit notes – 13,373,520 

$ 108,899,428 $ 108,557,829 

All investments are in fixed income securities and mature within the next three months (2008 - 
three months).  These investments bear interest from 0.9% to 1.1% (2008 - 1.9% to 3.6%). 

The Ontario Financing Authority acts as OTF's investment manager under an investment 
management agreement that adheres to OTF's policies and procedures governing risk and 
also includes additional risk concern measures.

Risk management relates to the understanding and active management of risks associated 
with all areas of the business and the associated operating environment.  Investments are 
primarily exposed to interest rate, credit and market risks.  OTF has formal policies and 
procedures in place to address these risks. 

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect the value of 
fixed income securities held by OTF.  The Foundation manages this risk by holding debt issued 
by the Government of Canada and large Canadian banks, and by staggering the terms of the 
securities held. 
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ONTARIO TRILLIUM FOUNDATION 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31, 2009 

8

3. Investments (continued): 

Credit risk arises from the non-performance by counterparties to the investments.  This risk is 
minimized by dealing only with creditworthy counterparties. 

Market risk arises as a result of trading fixed income securities.  Fluctuations in the market 
expose OTF to a risk of loss.  The Foundation mitigates this risk through controls to monitor 
and limit concentration levels. 

4. Capital assets: 

2009 2008 
 Accumulated Net book Net book 

  Cost amortization value value 

Furniture and fixtures $ 820,478 $ 706,014 $ 114,464 $ 101,246 
Computer hardware 1,031,646 788,066 243,580 262,701 
Computer software 684,794 404,799 279,995 15,348 
Leasehold improvements 1,490,633 1,313,080 177,553 150,895 

$ 4,027,551 $ 3,211,959 $ 815,592 $ 530,190 

5. Deferred contributions and grants payable: 

(a) Deferred contributions represent funding received from the Ministry that has not yet been 
pledged as grants.  These funds are restricted until grants are approved by the Board and 
pledged to third parties.  OTF has controls in place to ensure that the restrictions are met 
prior to utilization of these funds. 
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5. Deferred contributions and grants payable (continued): 

  2009 2008 

Deferred contributions, beginning of year $ 4,344,852 $ 3,675,804 

Activities during the year: 
Funding received: 

Ministry of Citizenship & Immigration 160,000 –
Ministry of Culture 110,000,000 105,000,000

110,160,000 105,000,000 

Investment income recorded as revenue 4,091,673 7,030,212 
Grants pledged (104,596,300) (100,306,100) 
Grantmaking expenses (10,963,450) (10,621,920) 
Support services and amortization (1,382,140) (1,558,872) 
Services to the community (258,455) (228,460) 
Grants rescinded or recovered 1,796,356  1,354,188  
Amounts recognized as Ontario

government funding (111,312,316) (104,330,952) 

Deferred contributions, end of year $ 3,192,536 $ 4,344,852 

(b) Once OTF pledges grants for distribution, the grants are recorded as grants payable.  
Grants pledged and not yet distributed are payable, subject to the receipt of funds by OTF 
and to certain performance conditions placed on the recipients.  The continuity of grants 
payable is as follows: 

2009 2008

Grants pledged - Community and
Province-Wide grants programs $ 104,596,300 $ 100,306,100

Grants rescinded (1,184,600) (1,076,800) 
Grants paid (102,065,094) (92,897,912) 

1,346,606 6,331,388 

Grants payable, beginning of year 102,688,700 96,357,312 

Grants payable, end of year $ 104,035,306 $ 102,688,700
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5. Deferred contributions and grants payable (continued): 

Grants are payable to various organizations in the fiscal years ending March 31 as follows: 

2010 $ 70,670,206
2011 25,078,300
2012 6,953,900
2013 1,169,600
2014 163,300

  $ 104,035,306 

6. Services to the community: 

Services to the community are charitable activities other than grants, such as convening, 
knowledge sharing and technical assistance to community organizations.  These contributions 
include expenses allocated from current operations. 

7. Commitments: 

Future minimum annual rental payments for premises under operating leases are as follows: 

2010 $ 368,000
2011 304,000
2012 273,000
2013 241,000
2014 7,000

  $ 1,193,000 

In relation to these leases, OTF has agreed to indemnify the Landlord against losses occurring 
on the lease premises which may arise out of a breach of the lease agreement. 

OTF's lease for its Toronto head office premises has been extended to February 2013.
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8. Indemnification of officers and directors: 

OTF has indemnified its past, present and future directors, officers, employees and volunteers 
against expenses (including legal expenses), judgements, and any amount actually or 
reasonably incurred by them in connection with any action, suit or proceeding in which the 
directors are sued as a result of their service, if they acted honestly and in good faith with a 
view to the best interests of OTF.  The nature of the indemnity prevents OTF from reasonably 
estimating the maximum exposure.  OTF has purchased directors' and officers' liability 
insurance with respect to this indemnification. 

9. Financial instruments: 

The carrying values of cash, accounts payable and accrued liabilities and grants payable 
approximate their fair values due to the relatively short periods to maturity of these items or 
because they are receivable or payable on demand. 

The fair value of investments and related risks are disclosed in note 3. 
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